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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BNk

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
of Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present the 2007/2008 annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30th June 2008 (2007: nil).

OPERATING RESULTS

The year under review was undoubtedly a challenging one for
the Group. For the year ended 30th June 2008, the turnover and
gross profits for the Group decreased by 1.5% and 27.9% over
the same period last year, to HK$134.2 million and HK$22.5
million respectively. Gross profit margin has decreased to 16.8%,
compared with 22.9% same period last year.
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of the Company of HK$27.1
?‘hrlllon This translated into loss

7 _(ifax and loss per share for the year would have
approximately HK$8.5 million and HK0.53 cent

i

The deterioration in operating results was also affected by
impairment losses made in relation to certain films and television
series as a result of poor and stagnant environment for film
industry. There is also an absence of one-off gains such as gain
on disposal of two investment properties amounting to an
aggregate of HK$5.4 million and a reversal of taxable temporary
differences of HK$5.6 million recorded in the same period last
year.

During the year under review, the local video distribution business
continued to shrink. On a more positive note, this was however
offset by turnover growth from film exhibition, licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights as more films were released during the
year. Consequently, the total turnover for the year remained at
similar level compared with last year.

Looking ahead, we strive to work towards the growth of the
business of film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). We believe
that our strategy of investing in the production of high quality
films and television series and expanded distribution network in
the PRC market will bring about satisfactory return to the Group.
Meanwhile, in light of the prevailing difficult operating conditions,
we will continue to manage the business development in a
prudent stance.
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APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude and sincere thanks to my fellow directors and our staff
for their dedication and contribution to the Group in the past
year. | would also like to thank all our customers and our
shareholders for their continued support.

By Order of the Board
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th October 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B Mg W Koo

BUSINESS REVIEW
VIDEO DISTRIBUTION

Turnover contribution from the video distribution business
segment continued to shrink as a result of reduction in new title
releases and the continued depression of the local video
distribution market which has been adversely affected by keen
competition and illegal peer-to-peer distribution of copyrighted
films on the internet.

Turnover for the year under review was HK$23.9 million,
representing a decrease of 29.8% over the same period last year.
It accounted for 17.8% (2007: 25.0%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover.

Notwithstanding the above, gross profit of this business segment
improved from approximately HK$5.1 million to approximately
HK$6.7 million due to the Group’s stringent and effective cost
control measures.

FILM EXHIBITION, LICENSING AND
SUB-LICENSING OF FILM RIGHTS

Turnover from this business segment for the year under review
was HK$106.0 million, representing an increase of 9.8% over
that of last year. The positive momentum of this segment
reaffirmed the Group’s strategy of investing in the production of
films and television series. This business segment provided an
increased contribution of 79.0% (2007: 70.9%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover.
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More specifically, turnover from film exhibition business declined
by 12.3% to HK$11.2 million compared to the previous year,
while operating loss widened to HK$4.8 million from HK$3.4
million. This was primarily due to continual contraction of the
local Chinese language film exhibition business, while promotional
cost incidental to the film releases continued to increase.

Driven by increased sales to the PRC market, turnover from
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights rose by 13.2% to
HK$94.8 million and contributed to 70.7% of the Group’s
consolidated turnover (2007: 61.5%). However, the
corresponding gross profit margin was negatively impacted by
rising film production costs, resulting in lower profits of HK$16.4
million.

Geographically, overseas sales increased their contribution to
the Group’s consolidated turnover from 44.5% to 49.1%. This is
especially the case for the PRC market which recorded 14.3%
growth in turnover. The Group has been focusing its efforts in
expanding its PRC marketing channels and distribution networks
and given the encouraging sales performance, the Group expects
the PRC market to remain a high-growth market in the foreseeable
future.

LEASING OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Following the disposals of two investment properties in the
second half of 2006 and the re-designation of an investment
property situated in the PRC for self-use purposes in July 2007,
turnover from this business segment decreased significantly by
50.3% to HK$1.3 million from HK$2.6 million.
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will continue with its geographical
diversification strategy and intends to put more resources into
large scale productions to enable broader and deeper market
penetration. The management is cautiously optimistic that the
operating environment of our overseas markets, particularly the
PRC, will stable as their economies stay on their respective
growth track. In particular, the management is also optimistic
towards the growth of the film licensing business in the PRC.

To respond to the adverse operating environment of the local
video distribution business, the Group will continue to manage
this business segment in a prudent manner; striving to enhance
its operational efficiency and productivity in order to achieve
further cost improvement.

With the management’s experience, we are confident that the
Group can overcome the market challenges and bring about
satisfactory returns to shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES/LIQUIDITY
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30th June 2008, the Group had cash balances of HK$147.2
million and unutilized banking facilities amounted to HK$20.0
million. The corresponding figures in last year were HK$146.9
million and HK$30.0 million respectively.
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As at 30th June 2008, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$353.4 million, representing a slight decrease
of HK$12.7 million over that of 30th June 2007.

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2008 was
approximately 0.1% (2007: 0.1%), which was calculated on the
basis of the Group’s borrowings of approximately HK$261,000
(of which HK$78,000, HK$69,000 and HK$114,000 are repayable
within one year, in the second year and in the third to fifth year
respectively) and on the total equity of the Company of
approximately HK$305.3 million.

There was no finance costs incurred for the year ended
30th June 2008 (2007: nil).

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars,
the management considers the Group’s exposure to fluctuations
in exchange rates to be limited and thus no financial instruments
for hedging purposes are used by the Group.

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP'S ASSETS

As at 30th June 2008, certain assets of the Group with aggregate
carrying value of HK$2 million (2007: HK$4 million) were pledged
to secure banking facilities utilized by its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30th June 2008, the Group employed 53 staff (2007: 68).
Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staffs are entitled
to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff benefits included
discretionary bonus, medical insurance scheme and mandatory
provident fund.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 26th November 2003, the Company conditionally
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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On 21st August 2007, the Company granted 143,460,537 share
options, which represented 8.83% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 30th June 2008, to certain employees of the
Group at the subscription price of HK$0.264 per share option
which were vested immediately and exercisable for a two-year
period between 21st August 2007 and 20th August 2009 (both
days inclusive). Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 23rd November 2007 (the “2007 AGM”), the
Company approved the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit,
which is 10% of the total number of issue shares of the Company
as at the date of the 2007 AGM, under the Scheme. After the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, the total number of
share options available for issue under the Scheme as at 30th
June 2008 was 162,460,537, which represented 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at 30th June 2008.

Certain directors and employees of the Group have been granted
share options under the Company’s share option scheme, details
of which are set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” of the Report of the Directors on page 28 of this annual
report.

On 16th July 2008, all share options outstanding as at
30th June 2008 were surrendered by all relevant Participants
and then cancelled.

RZZEZLFNAZ+—8  ARRATRR
BB EA10.264 0% H143,460,53717 BN S 57 B8
KA M FERB(R_ZEZ+FNA-+—HE
ZEENFNAZ+HBEE  BREEEMRRK A
TECERETASEB ATIREE  2SHER
BERER_ZETN\FXA=T+AARRDET
B1728.83% - BIHIEIRER THE ABERE
ARRz —BEBKG

BERZZSZELF+—AZT=HEITZER
BERe(ZETEFRRAFAE]) LAB
Z—IEEERFRER AR RHEREERER
BEHABRELR M- LFREBEF
AEEAZEETRMBEEZ10% - B E
RELRZ%E R_ZEEINEXA=ZTHZIR
BEREFEITHRHZTERELABEER
162,460,53717 - HER_ZEZNFA=TH
KRR ZEBEITRD Z10% °

AEEETEFREEREBERESEHER
THERE AREFEENAFRFEBELES
SHmEEN BRE S DERA -

RZZEZNFLA+RB ' TEARZZEZENF
NAZTHERITENBRECHEBIEA
REIRE LS °

= > % S I EE Y%SISATVNV ANV NOISSNOSIJ LNIWIDVNVIN

A=A

=
T
B
i
i
f
F
A
W]



¥ . |.-"0..||-III'"'|I
| IIIEIIIN

1 : g‘ﬁ‘-_ ¢
" Lﬁ;ta

A
fiy
Iy

I-.F.'.' I




DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 46, is the founder and Chairman
of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate strategy,
business planning and development and overall management of
the Group. Mr Lam has 27 years’ experience in the film industry
in Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
2002.

Ms CHIU Suet Ying, aged 48, is responsible for the formulation
of sales and marketing strategies. Ms Chiu is the wife of Mr Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil. She joined the Group in 1993.

Mr YEUNG Kim Piu, aged 47, is mainly responsible for overseeing
the operation of artiste management division. Mr Yeung joined
the Group in 1993 and has over 11 years of experience in the
film distribution industry in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr NG Kwok Tung, aged 58, is a practising accountant. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a licentiate in accountancy
from McGill University, Canada and a diploma in Chinese law
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from the University of East Asia, Macau. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia, the Order of
Chartered Accountants of Quebec, the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He joined the Group in 1999. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and a
non-executive director of Wah Ha Realty Company Limited, all
of which are publicly listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr CHIU Shin Koi, aged 72, is a tax consultant in a certified
public accounting firm in Hong Kong. He has worked for the
Inland Revenue Department for over 17 years. After retirement
from the Hong Kong government, Mr Chiu joined an international
accounting firm. From June 1988 to February 1990, Mr Chiu
was the financial controller of a large organisation. Mr Chiu later
joined the Securities and Futures Commission and served there
from March 1991 to March 1993. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1999.

Mr MA Ting Hung, aged 45, is the non-executive director of CITIC
Resources Holdings Limited, a publicly listed company in Hong
Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree majoring in Economics
from the University of Southern California. Mr Ma has over 21
years of experience in the banking, finance and natural resources
industries. He joined the Group in 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr LAM Siu Keung, Alvin, aged 38, is the Chief Operation Officer
of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the daily operation
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, he has over
eight years experience in finance and internal control consulting
for both Hong Kong and US listed companies in Arthur Andersen.
He earned his Bachelor of Accountancy at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is the younger
brother of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil.

Mr CHAN Hau Chuen, aged 38, is the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and accounting functions of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 1998, he has over six years of experience in finance
and accounting in an international accounting firm and a publicly
listed company in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to establishing of a good standard
of corporate governance practices by emphasizing transparency;,
accountability and responsibility to our shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has, throughout the year ended 30th June 2008,
complied with the Code Provisions on the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) except for the code provision A.2.1 of the Code
for the separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) as described in the following.

The Company does not at present have any officer holding the
position of CEO. Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and
Chairman of the Company and has also carried out the
responsibilities of CEO. Mr Lam possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge
in the business of the Group. The Board considers the present
structure to be more suitable to the Group because it can promote
the efficient formulation and implementation of the Group’s
strategies.

THE BOARD
DUTIES AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of business, strategic decisions and financial
performance of the Group for the best interests of the
shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power of the Group to the Executive Directors and
the senior management of the Company. The Board reviews its
arrangement on delegation of responsibilities and authority
regularly to ensure that such delegations are appropriate in view
of the Group’s prevailing circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@) any matter determined by the Board to be material
involving any conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director;
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any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s

strategies and directions including:

(0

(i

(ii)

(iv)

policies relating to the overall strategic direction
and strategic plans of the Company;

policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be
material by the Board.

financial controls, compliance and risk management:

(0

(iv)

the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

the approval of the Company’s financial statements
and published reports;

the establishment and review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s systems of internal control and
risk management process; and

the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including

reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of

new securities, other than in accordance with the terms

of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes

adopted by the Company from time to time;
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(e) major appointments and removal:

(i) appointments to the Board, taking into account
any recommendations of the Nomination
Committee;

(if) the appointment of the Chairman;

(ifi) recommendation to the shareholders on
the appointment or removal of external
auditors after taking into consideration the
recommendations of the Audit Committee; and

(iv) the appointment or removal of the Company
Secretary.

() delegation of authority:

(i) changes to terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board;

(i) changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(iif) matters which exceed the authority delegated to
the Chairman and the senior management.

(9) the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of six Directors, with three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The names and biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 15 and 16 of this annual report.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, of whom two have accounting professional
qualification. Their mix of professional skills and experience is
beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters of
the Group.
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The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee of the Company
or by shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is
appointed by the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years and re-election
in accordance with the provision of the Listing Rules and the
bye-law(s) of the Company (the “Bye-law(s)”). At least one-third
of Directors shall retire from office every year at the Company’s
annual general meeting.

Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Ms Chiu Suet Ying will retire by
rotation in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Mr Chiu Shin Koi and Mr Ma Ting Hung will retire by rotation in
accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws and not offer
themselves for re-election due to their business and personal
commitments and accordingly will cease to be Directors on
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on 28th November 2008. Each of Mr Chiu Shin Koi and Mr
Ma Ting Hung has confirmed there is no disagreement with the
Board and there is no other matter that needs to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company in respect of
their respective retirements.

The Board thanked Mr Chiu Shin Koi and Mr Ma Ting Hung for
their contributions to the Group during their tenure of office.

BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally held four regular board meetings
at approximately quarterly interval. Six board meetings were
convened during the year ended 30th June 2008 and the
attendances of individual Directors at these meetings are set out

as follows:

Attendance
Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 6/6
Ms Chiu Suet Ying 6/6
Mr Yeung Kim Piu 5/6
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 5/6
Mr Chiu Shin Koi 5/6
Mr Ma Ting Hung 5/6

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and an Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference was established by the Company on 15th July 2005.
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr Ma Ting Hung
(as Chairman), Mr Ng Kwok Tung and Mr Chiu Shin Koi, and two
Executive Directors, namely, Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Ms
Chiu Suet Ying. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.
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The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management
and reviewing the specific remuneration package of all Executive
Directors and senior management from time to time.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@) no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b) remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration; and

(€) performance-based remuneration should be reviewed and
approved by reference to corporate goal and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.

Two committee meetings were convened during the year ended
30th June 2008 and the attendance of each committee member
is set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Ma Ting Hung (Chairman) 2/2
Mr Ng Kwok Tung 2/2
Mr Chiu Shin Koi 2/2
Executive Directors
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 2/2
Ms Chiu Suet Ying 2/2
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Committee has also approved the remuneration and the
discretionary bonuses of the Executive Directors by reference to
their respective levels of responsibilities and performance,
industry benchmarks, prevailing marketing conditions and
Group’s financial performance and delegated the Executive
Directors to determine and formulate the remuneration policy for
the senior management of the Group. No Director is involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference was established by the Company on 15th July 2005.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr Chiu Shin Koi
(as Chairman), Mr Ng Kwok Tung and Mr Ma Ting Hung, and
two Executive Directors, namely, Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and
Ms Chiu Suet Ying. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board on a
regular basis and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting during the
year ended 30th June 2008.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on
11th October 1999. The written terms of reference which describe
the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were prepared
and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and in accordance with the Code. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial and accounting practices,
internal control and risk management. It is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and final results of the Group.
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The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30th June 2008 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Three committee meetings were convened during the year ended
30th June 2008 and the attendances of each committee member
at these meetings are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kwok Tung (Chairman) 3/3
Mr Chiu Shin Koi 3/3
Mr Ma Ting Hung 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement of
the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the
financial year 2007/2008 interim report and annual report of the
Company. The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal control
systems and met with the external auditor to discuss with them
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior
to the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors have the overall responsibility for internal control
and sets appropriate policies. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal control.

In compliance with Code Provision C.2.1 and to further improve
the effectiveness of its internal control, the Company engaged
an independent accounting firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group
for the year ended 30th June 2008. All findings for improvement
and recommendations made by the Consultant, which require
management’s attention, have been properly addressed and
implemented by the Company during the year.
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The system of internal control aims to help achieving the Group’s
business objectives, effective and efficient operations,
safeguarding assets and maintaining proper accounting records
for provision of reliable financial information. The design of system
is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets
and to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the
Group’s business objectives. No material suspected frauds and
irregularities, internal control deficiencies or infringement of
relevant regulations and rules have come to the attention of Board
to cause the Board to believe that the system of internal control
is inadequate.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30th June 2008 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standard and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 40 and 41 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor
of the Company by the shareholders of the Company at the last
annual general meeting of the Company. For the year ended 30th
June 2008, the remuneration payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
is set out as follows:
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 30th June 2008, the Company has
adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

B

The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”) of Universe
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) submit its report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 30th June 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 45.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 124.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations of
HK$120,500.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 123.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30th June 2008
amounted to HK$56,002,000 (2007: HK$56,304,000) including
contributed surplus of HK$51,852,000 (2007: HK$51,852,000)
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual general
meeting held on 26th November 20083, the Company conditionally
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Details of the Scheme are as
follows:
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(a)

PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant share options to selected Participants (as defined
below) as incentive and/or rewards for their contribution
and support to the Group and any invested entity.

PARTICIPANTS OF THE SCHEME

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contribution and support to the Group and any
invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

(i) any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually,
an “Employee”);

(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of
its subsidiary or any invested entity;

(ifi) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

(V) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the
Group or any invested entity;

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entity;

(vi)  any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any
invested entity; and

(vii)  any joint venture partner or counter-party to
business operation or business arrangements of
the Group, and for the purposes of the Scheme,
the share options may be granted to any company
wholly owned by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of the Participants.

(a)

(b)
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o EREHAKBERREBER ZER
KX ¥ 2 RE) R/ HRE -

Jil JBe A ol Py 2 BN

ExenBBEBEBN A NMEMRER
HBAREREMREERERRREL
XFZ2EAN(2EA])  EERBR
BARERD

(i) ARRTE -~ AEMHEQEREM
REERZEMNZRES 81
(BERER) ANAF - EEAH B
RAEREMREERE 2 EMHATT
Ex(RyNEAMEE]) :

(ii) Vi N/ T = £ 2 N = /NG R S G
REEBRBZEMIIENTES (B
WY IEHITESR)

(i)  ANEBEEMAKE QR HEMEE
R EMRE RS RS HER

vy AEEFEMAREERBZEANR
j=

V)  RAAKEREMREERRER
7 BRIEMBM R ZEMA
ALTHERE

(vi)  ANEEEFKE AR SHERKRE
ERCBRRAAREEMKER
AREMREERMBITZES
ZEAN:

(vii)  ANEEERKE AR SHERKRE
ERTMNEFHEXETERL
ERER (FXHIFEEFR) NFEH
A+ R

(vii) ARBEEBEFEREBRIEZ(E
MEBAREGEA - RpLBRE
MmE - AlA A ERRR Z 28
A(—fIsA L) 2 EMBHEE 2
NER LB -

I OF % m 4 ¢ SYOLOMIQ IHL 40 1MOdTY

=
T
B
E
i
el
F
N
|



>
z
4
C
>
=
el
rm
~
S
=)
)
o
o
3

C
z
<
rm
=
w
rm
z
._I
rm
el
Z
-
©)
z
>
—
T
©)
—
=
z
Q
w
=
ES
._[
rm
@)

I o # ) 4 g SYOLOMIQ IHL 40 1MOdTY

(c)

(d)

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARE OPTIONS
AVAILABLE FOR ISSUE UNDER THE SCHEME

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes for the time being
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Share options lapsed or
cancelled for the time being of the Company shall
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
said 30% limit; and

(if) The maximum number of share options available
for issue under the Scheme is 162,460,537 shares,
representing 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of the annual general meeting held on 23rd
November 2007 (the “2007 AGM”), in which the
shareholders approved the refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH
PARTICIPANT

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant to each grantee must not exceed 1% of
the aggregate number of shares of the Company for the
time being in issue.

(c)

(d)
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(e) REMAINING LIFE AND EXERCISABLE PERIOD
OF THE SHARE OPTIONS

There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion
any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular share option. A share option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period of 10 years commencing on the date of
grant and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year
period.

(f) PAYMENT ON ACCEPTANCE OF THE SHARE
OPTIONS OFFER

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

(g) BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION
PRICE

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme shall
be a price notified by the Board to a Participant to whom
any offer of the grant of a share option is made and shall
be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange, daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant which must be a business day; and
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
provided that the subscription price shall not be the lower
than the nominal value of a share.

On 21st August 2007, the Company granted 143,460,537 share
options, which represented 8.83% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 30th June 2008, to certain employees of the
Group at the subscription price of HK$0.264 per share option
which were vested immediately and exercisable for a two-year
period between 21st August 2007 and 20th August 2009 (both
days inclusive). Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. None of the
share options has been exercised or cancelled for the period
from 21st August 2007 to 30th June 2008. There was no share
options granted prior to 21st August 2007 under the Scheme.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the 2007 AGM, the
Company approved the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit,
which is 10% of the total number of issue shares of the Company
at the date of the 2007 AGM, under the Scheme. After the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit, the total number of
share options available for issue under the Scheme as at 30th
June 2008 was 162,460,537, which represented 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 30th June 2008.

The Directors individually and other employees of the Group in
aggregate had the following personal interest in share options to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company during the year
and at the end of the year:

REZTE+FREFAFAS BB —BY
FRBER  ARRMHLERIBER T 8 E et
ERELR T LFRRBAFASE

ZEETIRMESEZ10% - EHTEFRE LR
2% R-ETZNFENA=Z+HZIBEERE
SHEIRT B 1T RS PR A A B = 5162,460,53717
HER-_ZEZENENAZTHARRZEETT
f&153 2 10% °

rEEEREEREMEESHRFRARER
B 7 B AR LA SR 0B R 2 AR 19 2 (B A HE 2
T~

Number of Number of
Period during Price  share options Number of Number of share options ~ Market value
which per share on  outstanding at share options share options  outstandingat  per share on
share options exercise of  the beginning granted exercised the end of grant of
Date of grant  are exercisable  share options of the year  during the year  during the year the year  share options
TEERE RENE RELR
BENZ WRTEZ REERH REERAR HATEZ RUBRER
Participants S8A Rt BRETES SRER BREXE ZBRESE ZBREHE BRERE 2BERmE
HKD HKD
B B
Executive Directors HiTEs
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil iM% & 21/8/2007 21/8/2007- 0.264 - 16,245,000 - 16,245,000 0.243
20/8/2009
Ms Chiu Suet Ying HERLT 21/8/2007 21/8/2007- 0.264 - 16,245,000 - 16,245,000 0.243
20/8/2009
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRIREE 21/8/2007 21/8/2007- 0.264 - 16,245,000 - 16,245,000 0.243
20/8/2009
Eligible employees REER 21/8/2007 21/8/2007- 0.264 - 94,725,537 - 94,725,537 0.243
working under AN 20/8/2009
employment ZRER
contracts B2
- 143,460,537 - 143,460,537




On 16th July 2008, all share options outstanding as at
30th June 2008 were surrendered by all the relevant Participants
and then cancelled.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil
Ms CHIU Suet Ying
Mr YEUNG Kim Piu
Mr NG Kwok Tung '
Mr CHIU Shin Koi !
Mr MA Ting Hung '

" Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Ms Chiu Suet Ying will retire by
rotation in accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr Chiu Shin Koi and Mr Ma Ting Hung will retire by rotation in
accordance with 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws and not offer
themselves for re-election.

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as
specified by the Bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of the above Independent
Non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company is
satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its holding company, its
subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT
SECURITIES

As at 30th June 2008, the interests which are all long position of
each of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in
the share capital of the Company (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required
to be (a) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interest which any such Director was taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

(1 RO Z HE S

Number of
the Company’s

shares held Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest RSN shareholding
EEpR EmME RH &R BRESL
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Founder of a discretionary trust 872,406,705 53.70%

M/NBR ST A (Note)

—HEREFRZEIA (F)

Note: The trustee of the discretionary trust is Central Core
Resources Limited which owns the entire issued share
capital of Globalcrest Enterprises Limited which in turn
is interested in 872,406,705 shares of the Company.

(2)  INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES

Certain Directors have been granted share options under
the Scheme, details of which are set in the section “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” above.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2008, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short position in the share, underlying shares and debentures
or any of its associated corporations which were required to be
(a) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or (b) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code or (c) entered in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the Directors
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) had
any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares of the Company and its associated
corporations.

it ZERESFEZ X FEA &Central Core
Resources Limited ° % Al ##EH
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited £ &5 2
77N - [fiGlobalcrest Enterprises
Limited Bl # & 7K 2 7]872,406, 705 i
B o
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In addition, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, its associated company or its
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to hold any interests or short position in the shares or
underlying shares in or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2008, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholders

Number of the
Company’s shares held

BESN - ARTE] - HIERAF - HWEA
BENFSHERRWER Wmimlﬁﬂiﬁ
MR FEARRARESAEFTAERNATKEM
H Ak A BB 2 (TR M a5 oA A S RE AR 15 3K
BEHmEsR o

FEERR

RARBERMESFTREZITBRABMAE B
“EZENFRA=ZTH BALBBEZBEER
Zli’“ﬂ?E%‘éﬁiEﬁU\éiﬁl\  IRIERE I R B 1R D
EXVEEFE 2R3 BARA R B HE - HARK
NEREF N E GG E336(FREHETF 2B
e Re 8k - LA TR #5 A AN B 3B R AX
(D S -

Percentage of
shareholding

R E T AR RARRGEA BERE 2L
Globalcrest Enterprises Limited (Note) (i#) 872,406,705 53.70%
Central Core Resources Limited (Note) (i) 872,406,705 53.70%

Note: The entire issued share capital of Globalcrest Enterprises Limited
is held by Central Core Resources Limited, the trustee of a
discretionary trust under which certain immediate family members
of Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Ms Chiu Suet Ying are
discretionary objects.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2008, no other person
has any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

it ©  Globalcrest Enterprises Limited Z 2 82 %77
J& 7N #iCentral Core Resources Limited#% 74 -
[fiCentral Core Resources Limited J3#%// 85 55
ERBERL T ZETEHRHBAIBAZ S
RN

FPRABRBEAEREERADRFRMD ZIHFR -

BREXFIHEBREEN  RZZEENFARA=T
B BEEMATHEBREZSMAEKIE
336IEMBRBNART 2 ERMAZANARZ
AREEIORBEKIBERG MESMER °



MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

PURCHASES

— the largest supplier 12.05%
— five largest suppliers combined 47.14%
SALES

— the largest customer 14.05%
— five largest customers combined 27.05%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
and customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As announced on 19th December 2006, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited (“ULV”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a transaction which constituted a
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Rule
14A.14 of the Listing Rules, the details of which are set out as
follows:
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On 19th December 2006, ULV entered a tenancy agreement with
Rainbow Nice Limited (“RNL”) whereby ULV agreed to lease
premises (the “Premises”) from RNL for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1st January 2007 for the use of Mr Lam Shiu
Ming, Daneil and Ms Chiu Suet Ying for residential purpose. The
monthly rental payable by ULV is HK$200,000 which is inclusive
of furniture, fixtures and home electronic appliances but excluding
government rent, rates, taxes and all other outgoings.

The entire issued share capital of RNL, the landlord of the
Premises, is beneficially owned by Ms Chiu Suet Ying. By virtue
of the interest of Ms Chiu Suet Ying in RNL, the entering into of
the tenancy agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing
Rules.

As the continuing connected transaction satisfied the exemption
under Rule 14A.32(2) of the Listing Rules, it was only subject to
the annual review requirement and reporting and the
announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.41
and 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules respectively and was
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transaction and confirmed that the
transaction has been (i) entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial
terms or terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the tenancy agreement governing it on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The external auditor of the Company has also confirmed that for
the year ended 30th June 2008, the continuing connected
transaction (i) had received the approval of the Board; and (i)
had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing the transaction, and (iii) had not exceeded the cap
disclosed in the related announcement.

Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 30th June 2008,
certain of which constituted exempted connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules, the details of these are
disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20th October 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

g S A% B R

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

TE S5 R 1At 66 S A BT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNIVERSE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 122,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 30th June 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
33rd Floor

Cheung Kong Center

2 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30th June 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20th October 2008
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A a B E R

As at 30th June 2008
N—_ZEZENFEANA=1+H

2008 2007
—EENF —ET+F
Note(s) HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & BT T ST T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Leasehold land HELH 6 12,097 8,793
Property, plant Wz - Hees
and equipment L] 7 18,528 16,438
Investment properties WEYHE 8 23,170 26,107
Intangible asset ELEE 9 1,408 —
Film rights and ER-A T D
films in progress Blterh 2 B 10 98,947 112,654
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHE E 26 5,076 5,762
Long-term bank deposit RHRITER 14 - 7,800
159,226 177,554
Current assets REBEE
Film deposits BRI 2 2,619 2,947
Inventories rE 16 5,811 8,997
Accounts receivable JiE Uk BR 3R 15 30,250 25,638
Deposits paid Effike
and prepayments MIEF IR 8,370 11,942
Pledged bank deposits BBIEITER 17 & 35 2,000 4,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEZEEY 18 145,159 135,054
194,209 188,578
Total assets REE 353,435 366,132
O EQUITY e
_ Capital and reserves NN
= é attributable to BEAEWL
(>:> E the Company’s BEXRR
= equity holders fhE
35 Share capital R 19 32,492 32,492
E 523 Share premium I 17 3 B 21(a) 127,211 127,211
g3 Other reserves Ho A 21(a) 19,833 1,274
% Retained earnings 1R B BT 125,768 152,886
-
&) Total equity RS 305,304 313,863
=
B2
=
S
=
o



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
A EREAMEE

As at 30th June 2008
R=ZZEZENFEA~A=+H

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff 5 BT T BT IT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other long-term liabilities HtREBEE 25 183 66
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS T
liabilities BfE 26 3,691 3,446
3,874 3,512
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts payable FEfHBRFK 23 5,914 5,142
Other payables and H A FE T BRI
accrued charges BT 6,819 9,639
Deposits received BlET & 23 31,323 33,923
Amount due to the ultimate FE R B 2 IR A B
holding company HIE 22 1 3
Obligations under BEMEE
finance leases A 24 78 40
Taxation payable FES T IE 122 10
44,257 48,757
Total liabilities BEE 48,131 52,269
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 353,435 366,132
Net current assets RBEEFEE 149,952 139,821
Total assets less BEER
current liabilities REIBE 309,178 317,375 — 5
ZF
On behalf of the Board NS
FEFRH e
WA
X
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Chiu Suet Ying ]
Director Director
/N BA HEH
BF EF

The notes on pages 48 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

B E AR

As at 30th June 2008
RZZZENFASA=+H

The notes on pages 48 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNEIBEEF122BE M RLEGZETBRK 2 —HH -

2008 2007
—EENF —EEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo BT T BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A R&E 11 70,606 52,052
Deferred income tax assets BEFTSHEE 26 311 302
70,917 52,354
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from PN
subsidiaries I8 22 164,959 186,645
Prepayments and TET FRIB R
other receivable H & U 5K 125 134
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EEY 18 53 2,551
165,137 189,330
Total assets BEE 236,054 241,684
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves KA T
attributable to FEAEML
the Company’s EAXR
equity holders B
Share capital % 7R 19 32,492 32,492
Share premium grapingi-t 21(b) 127,211 127,211
Other reserves H b f# 21(b) 70,406 51,852
Retained earnings REBEF 4,150 4,452
Total equity 48R 25 234,259 216,007
Current liabilities REIBE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 1~ BfY B8 2 R SR8 22 - 24,870
Accrued charges JEST > 1,795 807
Total liabilities wneE 1,795 25,677
25
= Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 236,054 241,684
gz
i
35 On behalf of the Board
g% EEE®W
v Z
S5
% Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Chiu Suet Ying
= Director Director
: by AN HER
= EE EFE
z
3
z
z
3
O



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
A BSE

For the year ended 30th June 2008
HE_ZTT)\FAA=THLFE

2008 2007
—Z2ENF —EEf
Note(s) HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T ke
Turnover = 5 134,174 136,240
Cost of turnover E R 28 (111,664) (105,017)
Other gains — net Hhlas — F58 27 6,447 6,364
Gain on disposal of HEREME
investment properties Z e - 3,776
Gain on disposal of HERELE
non-current assets ZIERBEE
held for sale & - 1,653
Selling expenses HEER 28 & 29 (4,511) (2,841)
Administrative expenses THEA 28 & 29 (44,434) (27,516)
Other operating expenses Hinic £ & A 28 (9,222) (8,233)
Increase in fair value of WEWMEZ
investment properties A F{EIE N 8 3,140 1,611
Share of loss of FE(G s & A ]
an associated company 251 — (3)
(Loss)/profit before R AT 15 B AT
income tax (B]) /BF (26,070) 6,034
Income tax (expense)/credit FriS i (B R) /= # 30 (1,048) 5,492
(Loss)/profit attributable A TR
to the equity holders HE AEM
of the Company (B 18) /& F| (27,118) 11,526
(Loss)/earnings per share FARAAXRATF
for (loss)/profit EEEFEEA
attributable to G (&518) /
the equity holders of EBRz :
the Company g (EE)/ — %
during the year Z7 F =
(expressed in HK cent(s)) (AR BALET) %
— basic — &R 33 (1.67) 0.71 i f,i?
WA
— diluted — @ 33 N/ATiE N/AT i £ X
|

The notes on pages 48 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuUITY

For the year ended 30th June 2008
BE_TT ) N\FAA=THLFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

AARERKEAEE
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
A& K EE At REEF &g
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fizE BT BRI BT BRI BB
Balance at st July 2006 RZZERELA-A
LB 32,492 127,211 2,494 154,502 316,699
Revaluation reserve HEREME
adjustments upon disposal EECEMR
of investment properties REAg 21(a) — — (1,220) 1,220 -
Deferred income tax HERENF
adjustment upon disposal EAZEL
of investment properties FEHAE 26 — — — 259 259
Net income recognized EREERERL
directly in equity A — — (1,220) 1,479 259
Profit for the year EERA — — - 11,526 11,526
Total recognized income RIZTLERAL
for 2007 LT ON — — (1,220) 13,005 11,785

Dividends related to 2005/2006
paid in December 2006

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - T T (e (4f21)
Balance at 30th June 2007 RZEZ+E A=1H

i 32,492 127,211 1,274 152,886 313,863
Balance at 1st July 2007 RZZTLELA-A
,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ZEE . %42t 274 152886 313863
Grant of share options BERELEL 21(a) - - 18,554 - 18,554
Deferred income tax adjustment  HEEHEL 7

upon the change in tax rate BEMEHAR 21(a) - - 5 - 5

Loss for the year EEBR - - - (27,118) (27,118)
Total recognized income and RIZZT\FHAE
_expensefor208 bARgRR - - 185  (7118) (8559)
Balance at 30th June 2008 RZZZ\EXA=TH

LR 32,492 127,211 19,833 125,768 305,304
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The notes on pages 48 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
B ESmMER

For the year ended 30th June 2008

BE_ZZEN\F~NA=THILFE

2008 2007
—EENEF — 2T
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
(Note 42)
(PFzx42)
Cash flows from EETE
operating activities ZEERE
Cash generated EIEESE
from operations ZBEE 34 72,229 67,889
Tax paid B - (8)
Net cash generated LIEFEEL
from operating activities ZFEREe 72,229 67,881
Cash flows from REETH
investing activities ZEERE
Purchase of property, BBAMIZE - Hes
plant and equipment Ba (1,082) (2,076)
Proceeds from disposal HEME - s
of property, plant NEE
and equipment FriS 5K 34 43 —
Proceeds from disposal HEREY
of investment properties BN 34 - 31,125
Proceeds from disposal HEFIELHEZ
of non-current assets EMENE E
held for sale ZFTERK 34 - 33,303
Decrease/(increase) in BHEIRITEK
pledged bank deposits 2/ (35 0) 2,000 (2,000)
Purchase of intangible B AEY
asset BE 9 (1,408) —
Purchase of film rights BN E R R AE
and films in progress REUER 2 ER 10 (74,261) (93,147)
Interest received B F 2 27 4,878 6,054
Redemption of long-term f& o] = B
bank deposit SRITIFER 14 7,800 —
Net cash used in ®EEBFTA
investing activities ZFERE (62,030) (26,741)
Cash flows from A& EE
financing activities ZEESRE
Dividend paid B E - (14,621)
Capital element of INRMERE
finance leases payments 2 BRI 34 (94) (88)
Net cash used in Bl E E B T A
financing activities ZFRE (94) (14,709)
Net increase in cash and ReRESZEEY
cash equivalents Z B 10,105 26,431
Cash and cash equivalents at REHIR &
beginning of the year RIReEEY 135,054 108,623
Cash and cash equivalents REKREE
at end of the year RASZEY 18 145,159 135,054

The notes on pages 48 to 122 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BNFEEFI122E 2T RLEHFESMBEHmEKR 2 — 801D
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in distribution of films in various videogram
formats, film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film
rights and leasing of investment properties.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000”),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 20th October 2008.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which is a collective term referred to all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, which are
carried at fair value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i o B Ak M R

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The actual results may differ from these
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. The Group has
adopted the new and revised HKFRSs below,
which are relevant to its operations, in the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Presentation of Financial Statements

- Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
has no material effect on the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not adopted any new standard or
interpretation that is not effective for the current
accounting period, details of which are set out in
Note 43.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the

financial statements of the Company and all of its

subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses
(Note 2.8). The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for by the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognized at
cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognized
in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognized in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investment in an associated company is
stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The result of an associated
company is accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Jointly controlled assets

Jointly controlled assets are assets of a joint
venture over which the Group has joint
control with other venturers in accordance
with contractual arrangements and through
the joint control of which the Group has
control over its share of future economic
benefits earned from the assets.

The Group’s share of jointly controlled
assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with
other venturers are recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet and classified
according to their nature. Liabilities and
expenses incurred directly in respect of its
interests in jointly controlled assets are
accounted for on an accrual basis. Income
from the sale or use of the Group’s share
of the output of the jointly controlled assets
together with its share of any expenses
incurred by the joint ventures, are
recognized in the consolidated income
statement when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the
transactions will flow to or from the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as
the secondary reporting format for the purposes
of these consolidated financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment
revenue, expenses and segment performance
include transactions between segments. Inter-
segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties for similar
services. These transactions are eliminated upon
consolidation.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the year to acquire segment assets
(both tangible and intangible) that are expected to
be used for more than one year.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and liabilities, cash and cash
equivalents, deferred income tax assets, deferred
income tax liabilities, taxation payable and interest
income.

2

B BUORSE (@)

2.3

¥R e A

BESBEIIAEE —EA{ER R
BAEKE D - TEREFRMHE
EEmMMRE (ZHDE) - IR
BRI EERE TR ERER
(@A) - MRS
B[R] A e e [ ¥R

RIE A& B 8 A BB 75 B
B Bt EREYBREAMS -

AEEREBEGORERMERE
BRELA - WIAMEDBEFR

ERILB D BHRETLR -

DEWE X EE BER
BEEE B BEREANE
H&TAﬁ PEEEZ D ENIR
® /_\*EJ‘IK N /'\*EF?';%EE& '\*E
%%i%@ﬂ?ﬁ"*ﬁfﬁ 2% o DIERIE
RT3 RSB UUBRTE B B B INRA
TRENBELUERETE - ZEX
SEFA R o

pa

NREAFAEFANEEANEER
PREE(BERER) WEK
K FRARERBASAIER—F
AE -

APBEEETEBREUBER

é%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Y BIEFSHEE  RIEMS
MBE  BETELFERA -

=
i
B
£
i
il
F
N
|



~

800T IJOdJdId TVNANNY

AILIWIT SONIATOH TVNOILYNYILNI ISHIAINN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the income
statement. Translation differences on non-
monetary items are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following items of property, plant and

equipment are stated in the consolidated balance

sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses:

buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land, where the fair
value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value for the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease
(Note 2.7(a)); and

other items of plant and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2od

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises (i) its purchase price, (i) any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use, and (iii) the initial estimate at the time of
installation and during the period of use, where
relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are
located.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment
or recognized as a separate item of property, plant
and equipment, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul
costs, are recognized in the consolidated income
statement as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the unexpired

buildings term of land lease
Leasehold improvements 2 — 5 years
Machinery and equipment 3 — 5 years
Others 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dod

2.6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognized within “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and
that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated group, is classified as investment

property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations
of the investment properties are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. These valuations are
reviewed annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income from
future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognized
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect
of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
pUrposes.

LEASED ASSETS

(a) Operating lease

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payment made
under the leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognized in the consolidated income
statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the
accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7  LEASED ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Operating lease (Continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is stated in the consolidated
balance sheet as “Leasehold land” and is
amortized to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the
property is classified as an investment

property.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in current and non-current
borrowings. The interest element of the
finance cost is recognized in the
consolidated income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The
investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND NON-
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortization, and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Non-financial assets
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment of each
reporting date.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

The club membership is carried at cost less
impairment losses.

The club membership has an indefinite useful life
and is thus not subject to amortization. The club
membership is tested at least annually for
impairment and is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11

FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN PROGRESS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Film rights

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of film rights is amortized over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their economic lives, with reference to
projected revenues.

Films in progress
Films in progress are stated at cost less any

Cost
includes all direct costs associated with the

provision for impairment losses.

production of films. Cost of films is transferred
to film rights upon completion.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal
and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that assets included in film rights
and films in progress are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the carrying amount
of such assets is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognized
to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are
recognized in the consolidated income
statement.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

FILM DEPOSITS

Film deposits comprise deposits paid for the
acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artistes and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under
agreements for acquisition of film rights is disclosed
as a commitment. Provision for film deposits is
made to the extent that they are not expected to
generate any future revenue for the Group.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accounts and other receivables are recognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of accounts and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the
accounts receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognized
in the consolidated income statement within “other
operating expenses”. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for accounts receivable. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against “other operating expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i o B Ak M R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognized when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognized until the
time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund in Hong Kong, the assets
of which are held in separate trustee —
administered funds. The pension plan is
funded by payments from employees and
by the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are
expensed as incurred and are not reduced
by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(iii)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates share option scheme
where employees (and including directors) are
granted share options to acquire shares of
the Company at specified exercise price. The
fair value of the share options granted is
recognized as share-based compensation in
the consolidated income statement over the
vesting period and credited to the share-
based compensation reserve under equity.
The fair value of the share options granted is
measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model and spread
over the respective vesting period during
which the share option scheme participants
become unconditionally entitled to the share
options. During the vesting period, the
number of share options that is expected to
vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognized in prior years
is charged or credited to the consolidated
income statement, unless the original share-
based compensation qualifies for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognized as
share-based compensation is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based compensation reserve). The
reserve will be transferred to share capital and
share premium account upon exercise of the
share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

o B B oA Bk

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when: (i) the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; (i) it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and (i) the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provision are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognized
as interest expense.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognized on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has
passed.

(ii) Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognized upon the delivery
of the pre-recorded audio visual products
and the materials for video features
including the master tapes to the
customers, in accordance with the terms
of the underlying contracts.

(iif) Film exhibition income is recognized when
the right to receive payment is established.

(iv) Operating lease and other rental income is
recognized on a straight-line basis.

(V) Interest income is recognized on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company'’s shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i o B Ak M R

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The policies for managing these
risks are summarized below.

(a) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the United States dollars.
Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities.
Hong Kong dollars is pegged to the
United States dollars and thus
foreign exchange exposure is
considered to be minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The Group's exposure to
changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its interest-bearing
assets including short-term bank
deposits.

As at 30th June 2008 and 2007, if
the interest rate increased/
decreased by 50 basis-point with all
other variables held constant, loss
attributable to the equity holders of
the Company for the year ended
30th June 2008 would have been
approximately HK$129,000 lower/
higher and profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 30th June 2007
would have been approximately
HK$345,000 higher/lower,
respectively, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on the
short-term bank deposits.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and

cash equivalents and deposits with bank

and financial institutions, as well as credit

exposures to customers, including

outstanding receivables and committed

transactions. The management has policies

in place to monitor the exposures to these

credit risks on an on-going basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B B oA Bk

»/T
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 o % R B S B ()
(Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 T 5 R B Bl R (42 )
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEEREGE)
For banks and financial institutions, EIRITHEP BT E
deposits are only placed with reputable ﬁ?ﬁRT—E&E’:\*ﬁ%%E’\JﬁE
banks. For credit exposures with EREFHEERR
customers, the Group has put in place EE AEBHITE T
policies to ensure that provision of services CABRAEENEE
to customers with an appropriate credit aﬂﬁﬁ’zﬁ’\]%}f}mﬁﬁﬁi%&ﬁ
history and the Group performs periodic SEEHHEEFNEEM
credit evaluations of its customers. The ST o IREBASE
Group’s historical experience in collection R B E &8 - EUERIR 2
of accounts receivable falls within the IWWERE TR R HIPR BE 2 A ©
recorded allowances.
The table below shows the credit limit and T KRBT ESEEEE
balance of the three major debtors at the —AEZRBERE
respective balance sheet dates. }5 B 1= ER BB A & -
As at 30th June
RAAB=1+H
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Credit limit Utilized  Credit limit Utilized
EERE g2ER =ERE EfEA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Counterparty HFEH
Customer A ZEA 3,000 2,673 3,000 2,816 ; E
Customer B %FB 330 177 330 215 P
Customer C &FC 300 176 300 249 AL
i
WA
FR
‘IL\\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 §F 7% L e 4 PR ()
(Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1  HMEBREEER E)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1=EREEE)
No credit limits were exceeded during the EREHRN - WEESEER
reporting period, and the management HHEREE - MEEEIN
does not expect any losses from non- TIEH A I E 5 H E R
performance by these counterparties. BHRITAMELEEIE -
The credit quality of financial assets that are KiBEA S R E M B T8 E
neither past due nor impaired can be EZEEE=02BHF
assessed by reference to the counterparty’s F iR B HE R SR e e AT
default history. The current portion of & o 435 {E K BN HA FE Uk BE
accounts receivable, which is not impaired O :
is analyzed below:
As at 30th June
RAA=+H
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Accounts receivable FE W BR X
New customers EP
(less than 12 months) (DR121@ B) 2,111 6,467
Existing customers WEEP
(more than 12 months) (Z12@8) 25,084 4,713
Total pEkE) 27,195 11,180
As at 30th June 2008, accounts receivable RZEZENFENA=F
of HK$3,055,000 (2007: HK$14,458,000) H EAHREREREL
were past due but not impaired. These relate JE U AR 3 A& 75 #38,055,000
to a number of independent customers for T(ZE2EZELF : BK
whom there is no recent history of default. 14,458,0007T) ° % FHRK
The ageing analysis of these accounts ThRAA — LE3 B3 M 48 )
receivable by due dates is as follows: AERA BB o B EE
2 FEUS BR TR 2 BR e 3 4T 40
T~
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Current to 90 days BNEAZ=90H 634 2,017
91 days to 180 days 91H£180H 1,442 10,383
Over 180 days 180H JA £ 979 2,058
3,055 14,458




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o B B R W RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 Bk E ()

(Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 T 5 R B Bl R (42 )
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERE(E)
The table below shows the Group’s and the TRETAEERAR
Company'’s cash and cash equivalents and NEZERB 2R RS
bank deposits with listed financial B RFHN Em E\ﬁ%&l%
institutions at balance sheet dates. B2 RITHER o
2008 2007
—ER\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Group KEE
Cash and cash equivalents TR £ B T i s
with listed financial 2R R
institutions ReFEY 145,084 135,024
Pledged bank deposits TR 7 B s e s
with listed financial 2 B
institutions HRITIF 2,000 4,000
Long-term bank deposit TR 7 B s i s
with listed financial 2 RERTT
institution T - 7,800
Cash in hand FHERSE 75 30
147,159 146,854
Company IRAF]
Cash and cash equivalents TR £ B T i s
with listed financial Z2HRER
institutions ReEEY 53 2 o
% 5
None of the terms of financial assets which REBEEZZTEZENFSA= % %
are past due or impaired have been THIEFEA - WEG B A P
renegotiated during the year ended 30th BEZHRAEBHNE g %
June 2008 (2007: same). WEMEERE - (ZF E%
THF : 4ER) =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 %A ()

(Continued)
3.1  FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 WHEEREKZE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) REBEZLEE

The Group manages its liquidity risk by REEFBREREH S

maintaining sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and
monitoring the liquidity requirements from

time to time.

The table below analyzes the Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period from the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

LRABSEEBEZAN
EcEEERESA
R WATREEERESE
EHEK -

WP B RENMAFREE
RENTEMBTRE &
SRR I AR - RIE
HEEHEAHNZIHBEN
RIAHRET O - £RX
ARBEHSELA MR
MENREAE -

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1EUT 1225 R 2Z5F R 5%5E aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Group AEE
At 30th June 2008 R-ZEENERA=TH
Accounts payable FEFER R 5,914 - - - 5,914
Other payables and H At fE -8R 3K
accrued charges RIE i 6,819 - - - 6,819
Deposits received BT 31,323 - - - 31,323
Obligations under MEME
finance leases R 78 69 114 - 261
Amount due to the TR
ultimate holding ERAE
company HIE 1 - - - 1
N At 30th June 2007 R-ZBE+EXA=1H
Accounts payable ERERHR 5,142 - - - 5,142
= S Other payables and H o FE (T AR
Z = accrued charges RIEG 9,639 — — — 9,639
S = Deposits received R EK 33,923 - - - 33,923
=g Obligations under RENE
& _ finance leases A 40 29 37 — 106
35 Amount due to the JEf &4
i ultimate holding ERAR
v Z company B 3 - - - 3
o >
S5
* 0 Company NG
2 At 30th June 2008 R=BZNE~A=1H
; Accrued charges EEt S 1,795 - - - 1,795
g At 30th June 2007 R-BEtEXA=1H
= Amount due to e lEAG
Z a subsidiary ] 24,870 - - - 24,870
- Accrued charges At 807 - - - 807
z
,_[
rm
o]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i o B Ak M R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

BN

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 30th June 2008, the Group had the
following borrowing facilities:

Fo 75 o i 4 B (2

3.1

g N S ENG))
(c) mBEZmEE(E)

R-BENEAAZT
B AKE EEEED

T
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT
Borrowing facilities available AHEREEEE 20,000 30,000
Borrowing facilities utilized EBAEERE - =
Undrawn borrowing facilities ABAEBEEREE 20,000 30,000
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.2 B B B

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current obligations
under finance leases) divided by total capital. Total
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

For the year ended 30th June 2008, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2007, was
to maintain a lower gearing ratio. The gearing ratio
at 30th June 2008 was 0.1% (2007: 0.1%).

AEENESEERRER  =2RE
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B R AR H i s 35 A AREA
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A o W AR M R

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The carrying value less impairment provision of
receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a)

IMPAIRMENT OF FILM RIGHTS, FILMS IN
PROGRESS AND FILM DEPOSITS

The Group assesses annually whether the film
rights, films in progress and film deposits have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2. Such annual
assessment is performed at each balance date
with reference to current market conditions and
each film deposit recipient’s reputation, trade
history and current financial position. According
to the management’s cash inflow forecast in
respect of each film title and realization of each
film deposit, an impairment loss of HK$5,057,000
(2007: HK$4,640,000) was recognized in the
consolidated income statement to reduce the
carrying amounts of certain film rights and film
deposits to their recoverable amounts. If projected
cash inflow from these films were to deteriorate,
additional provision for impairment may be
required. As at 30th June 2008, the carrying value
of film rights, films in progress and film deposits
amounted to approximately HK$101,566,000
(2007: HK$115,601,000).
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(c)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The provision policy for accounts receivable of the
Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability
of those receivables and management’s
judgement. A considerable judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realization of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history and repayment
pattern of each customer. During the year, an
impairment losses of HK$2,544,000 (2007:
HK$2,000,000) was recognized in the consolidated
income statement to reduce the carrying amount
of certain receivables of the Group to their
recoverable amounts. If the financial conditions of
these customers were to deteriorate, additional
provision for impairment may be required. As at
30th June 2008, the carrying value of accounts
receivable amounted to approximately
HK$30,250,000 (2007: HK$25,638,000).

AMORTIZATION OF FILM RIGHTS

The Group is required to estimate the projected
revenue of the film rights within the shorter of the
underlying license period and their economic lives
in order to ascertain the amount of amortization
charges for each reporting period. The
appropriateness of the amortization estimate
requires the use of judgement and estimates with
reference to the prevailing and future market
conditions and the expected cashflow pattern of
the projected revenue. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material effect on
the amortization expenses.

(c)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 o S AN B R A B ()
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)
(b) PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF (b)  FEWCR R Z W AE 3
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(d)  RECOGNITION OF SHARE-BASED
COMPENSATION EXPENSE

The Group has applied the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model to determine the total fair value of
the share options granted. Highly subjective
estimates and assumptions are required to be
made in determining the parameters for applying
the Black-Scholes Options Pricing Model, including
the estimates and assumptions of the risk-free
interest rate, the expected stock price volatility of
the underlying shares and the expected life of the
share options.

Changes in these estimates and assumptions
could have a material effect on the determination
of the fair value of the share options, which may in
turn significantly impact the determination of the
share-based compensation expense.

During the year ended 30th June 2008, share-
based compensation expense of approximately
HK$18,554,000 was recognized (Note 29).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT — BUSINESS
SEGMENTS

The Group is organized into the following main business
segments for the current year:

= Distribution of films in various videogram formats

= Film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of films
rights

— Leasing of investment properties

The Group’s inter-segment transactions mainly consist of
licensing of film rights, which are transferred at cost.

SECONDARY REPORTING FORMAT —
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Distribution of films in various videogram formats is solely
operated in Hong Kong and Macau, while the Group
operates its film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights in five (2007: five) main geographical segments.

There are no sales between geographical segments.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 EER @

PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT — BUSINESS FFS A — EHH LR
SEGMENTS
2008
“2R)F
Film exhibition,

licensing and Leasing of
Sale of sub-licensing  investment

goods  of film rights properties Others Elimination Group
17 CY
RURER HERE

HEEm EYMmE nE Hif i T5E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr BB BB BB BB BB

Turnover BEE
External sales oz HE 23,928 106,044 1,311 2,891 - 134,174
Inter-segment sales Az HE - 6,546 - 164 (6,710) -
23,928 112,590 1,311 3,055 (6,710) 134,174
Results E3
Segment results before HEBRH
impairment losses LABEE (9,944) (19,170) 597 (514) - (29,031)
Impairment losses of film EYMEREY
tights and film deposits ZREER (99) (4,958) - - - (5,057)
Segment results PEEE (10,043) (24,128) 597 (514) - (34,088)
Increase in fair value of REME
investment properties ZDTEEM - - 3,140 - - 3,140
Interest income 8 A 4,878
Loss before income tax BEGHAEE (26,070)
Income tax expense FEHER (1,048)
Loss attributable to equity ARAREREAA
holders of the Company EEER (27,118)
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 24,508 56,161 24,604 5,736 - 111,009
Unallocated assets FOMEE 242,426
Total assets BEE 353,435
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities PHEE 4,180 31,167 543 3,199 - 39,089
Unallocated liabilities AOWAE 9,042

Total liabilities A 48,131
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N) SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) S

PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT — BUSINESS
SEGMENTS (Continued)

S ERE (@)

EE IR — EHEWER (B)

2008
“RENE
Film exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Sale of sub-licensing investment
goods of film rights properties Others  Elimination Group
RHRER HERE
HEER E¥IRE ng Hth ik P3|
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETT BETT BETT BETT
Other information HinEk
Capital expenditures BRMRES 5,654 iz 490 35 - 6,920
Unallocated capital RABEAE
expenditures 53 70,080
Total capital expenditures BERMRY 77,000
Depreciation and HER
amortization of RELH
leasehold land ZEH 1,007 65 87 9 - 1,168
Unallocated depreciation RAEHER
and amortization of RELH
leasehold land 2B 792
Total depreciation and BIER
amortization of leasehold RELH
land ZEH 1,960
Amortization charge SV ME
of film rights ZEH 8,040 75,142 - - - 83,182
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ArERERL )

PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT — BUSINESS
SEGMENTS (Continued)

B — KB ER ()

2007
“ETEE
Film exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Saleof  sub-licensing investment
goods of film rights properties Others Elimination Group
*Eﬁﬁyﬂ%
RERER HRRE
HEER SIRIE ES Efty i AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT AETT AETT
Turnover EXB
External sales iz HE 34,066 96,582 2,639 2,953 — 136,240
Inter-segment sales PHEZHEE - 12,143 - 340 (12,483) -
34,066 108,725 2,639 3,293 (12,483) 136,240
Results E
Segment results before AEBR
impairment losses LAB5E (2,594) (1,043) 1,304 (174) - (2,417)
Impairment losses of film E?? EREYi2
rights and film deposits LHEER (120) (4,520) - - - (4,640)
Segment results PHEE 2,714) (5,563) 1,304 (174) - (7,057)
Gain on disposal of MEREME
investment properties a6 - - 3,776 - - 3,776
Gain on disposal of non-current HERFILEL
assets held for sale ¥RBEE NE - - 1,653 - - 1,653
Increase in fair value of REMZ
investment properties L DTFEEM - - 1,611 - - 1,611
Interest income ELON 6,054
Share of loss of an BB ERT
associated company BB ()
Profit before income tax B EHAIRMN 6,034
Income tax credit FEREE 5,492
.
Profit attributable to equity ARFERFAA % %
holders of the Company EERT 11,526 N
4 P
Assets BE $ %
Segment assets PHEE 27,438 41,478 26,755 5,003 - 100,674 i1
Unallocated assets KAREE 265,458 N
=
Total assets BEE 366,132
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilities AHAE 4,280 34,029 385 5,753 - 44,647
Unallocated liabilities AARAS 7,622
Total liabilities B8 52,269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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S SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) S

PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT — BUSINESS
SEGMENTS (Continued)

S ERE (@)

EE IR — EHEWER (B)

2007
“TTLE
Film exhibition,
licensing and Leasing of
Saleof  sub-licensing investment
goods of film rights properties Others Elimination Group
ERHY -
RERER HARE
HEER ERIRE S Eft i A58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB BB BB
Other information Bty EH
Capital expenditures ERMRE 7,152 762 - 4 — 7,918
Unallocated capital RPBRERY
expenditures 53 87,305
Total capital expenditures BEAERY 95,223
Depreciation and fER
amortization of RETiH
leasehold land 2B 1,090 45 20 4 - 1,159
Unallocated depreciation RABRHER
and amortization of RELTH
leasehold land LBH 619
Total depreciation and BHER
amortization of leasehold RETiH
land 2B 1,778
Amortization charge EYME
of film rights LBH 16,405 55,810 - - - 72,215
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ArERERL )

SECONDARY REPORTING FORMAT —

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

e a8 43 TR HR  — Husg A R R

2008
—EENE
Total Capital
Turnover assets expenditures
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETRT BETT
Hong Kong and Macau BB KR 66,788 320,750 75,592
Asia (other than Hong Kong and Macau) 25}l (&7 KRk 5N 54,267 30,441 1,408
North America T EM 3,694 1,690 -
Australia and New Zealand BN R AT 210 - -
Europe BUM 7,321 503 -
Others Hit 1,894 51 -
134,174 353,435 77,000
2007
—TT+E
Total Capital
Turnover assets expenditures
EER BEE BARMR X
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
Hong Kong and Macau BB KR 72,582 338,166 95,223
Asia (other than Hong Kong and Macau) 25 (&7 KRB 5N 53,337 25,367 —
North America b EM 3,886 2,320 —
Australia and New Zealand M R AT 115 — — _
Europe BUM 5,869 241 — % ?
Others o 451 38 — b .
4 P
136,240 366,132 95,223 $ %
"
]
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6

LEASEHOLD LAND HE M
2008 2007
—EE\F —BRLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Group AEHE BT T BT
Cost BN
Beginning of the year F4 10,068 10,068
Transfer from investment EEAIEE
properties (Note 8) ¥z (MF5E8) 3,605 —
End of the year FR 13,673 10,068
Accumulated amortization RETHEE
Beginning of the year F 1) 1,275 1,037
Amortization for the year T 301 238
End of the year FIR 1,576 1,275
Net book value BREFE
End of the year F 4R 12,097 8,793
Beginning of the year F9) 8,793 9,031

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represents prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values are

analyzed as follows:

AEBERE DM RS RENEEN
B RREEEFESFTOT

2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Held in Hong Kong on: EBBHE :

Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E250F M E 8,574 8,793

Held outside Hong Kong on: EBBAINGE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E250F M E 3,523 —
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 7 Y3 - BAS
EQUIPMENT
Machinery
Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
Buildings improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
BF HENELE AERRE  HKARRE RE  BAERRE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group r5E BETT BETT BETFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BETFT
Cost or valuation KA (A E
At 1st July 2007 RZZ2+E
tA—H 14,309 6,290 26,513 1,435 2,173 7,015 57,735
Additions =R — 473 52 59 436 311 1,331
Transfer from investment ~ BABRE
properties (Note 8) mE (e 2,472 - - - - - 2,472
Disposals (Note 34) HE (Fi7E34) - — - (6) (304) (491) (801)
At 30th June 2008 RZZENE
~NAZTH 16,781 6,763 26,565 1,488 2,305 6,335 60,737

Accumulated depreciation ~ ZatiTE

At 1st July 2007 RZEELE 1,631 6,041 24,884 1,397 596 6,748 41,297
tA-A
Charge for the year FERE 372 149 488 31 466 153 1,659
Disposals (Note 34) HE (Fi3£34) - = = (6) (253) (488) (747)
At 30th June 2008 RZZEENE
~NAZTH 2,003 6,190 25,372 1,422 809 6,413 42,209
Net book value REFE
At 30th June 2008 RZEENF
~NA=tH 14,778 573 1,193 66 1,496 422 18,528
At 30th June 2007 RZZZLE
~NAZTH 12,678 249 1,629 38 1,577 267 16,438
At 30th June 2008, net book value of machinery and RZZBZENFASA=1H  AEERE
equipment held by the Group under finance leases is BEHERA 2 MR E 2 REEE
approximately HK$257,000 (2007: HK$97,000). % R 5 257,000 (ZEEHF : B
97,0007T) °
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 7 W - B G (@
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Machinery
Leasehold and Furniture Motor Office
Buildings improvements equipment  and fixtures vehicles equipment Total
B3 HEMEEE HERRGE  FAREE RE  WAERE #
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Group T5H BRI BET T BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
Cost or valuation KA fE(E
At 1st July 2006 RZZEXE
+A—H 14,309 6,573 26,006 1,492 762 6,925 56,067
Additions iR = = 529 - 1,411 136 2,076
Disposals (Note 34) & (Fi3Es4) - (283) 22) (57) - 46) (408)
At 30th June 2007 i
777777777777 /_\,E,ETH, - 7147,30797 - 762907 - 72@,57137 - 7174375 - 7217737 - Z0157 - f?j@é
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZiHTE
At 1st July 2006 RZZERE
+A—H 1,306 6,171 24,307 1,387 279 6,601 40,051
Charge for the year FENE 325 82 599 27 317 190 1,540
Disposals (Note 34) I (Fi3Es4) - (212) (22) (17) - 43) (294)
At 30th June 2007 RZZTELE
777777777777 /_\ﬁiEJ[Eli - 1,63J - 76941 - 72&,8&347 - 7173977 - §9Ei - §7f87 - 741,7291
Net book value EEFE
At 30th June 2007 RZE5tE
~NA=TH 12,678 249 1,629 38 1,577 267 16,438
The carrying amount of buildings of the Group is analyzed AEBZEFEERESNAT ¢
as follows:
2008 2007
—EENEF —EE+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T ke
Held in Hong Kong on: EBBHE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10250F B & 12,362 12,678
Held outside Hong Kong on: EBBAINGE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E50F HiMHEE 2,416 —
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 "EYE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BETT
Beginning of the year F9) 26,107 51,845
Change in fair value NSRIEE-E) 3,140 1,611
Transfer to leasehold land and EREHE T RET
buildings (Notes 6 and 7) (FzE6 % 7) (6,077) —
Disposal & - (27,349)
End of the year Fax 23,170 26,107

The carrying amount of investment properties of the Group

is analyzed as follows:

AEBEZREMEFRAEINDOT

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Held in Hong Kong: EBBFE
On medium-term lease 10E 504 i/
(10 to 50 years) FHITEE 23,170 20,030
Held outside Hong Kong: EBBLAIGE
On medium-term lease 10E 504 i/
(10 to 50 years) FHEE - 6,077
23,170 26,107

EREMER_ZZENFA=1H
ZAVFEEHAKERBR-—HAEXE

The fair values of all investment properties as at 30th June
2008 were revalued by an independent, professionally

qualified valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited, a member of the 2B GESE  PAMBHFAGHBERA §
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors engaged by the Group. A(AEBIEMEerg8)EHE A
Valuations were based on current prices in an active & HEDZERERM S ZRITREER 2

#H

market. R e

A>EDF R RE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

9 INTANGIBLE ASSET ) I & A
Total
HEE
HK$’000
BT
Group AEE

Cost and net book value B AN K BR TEFE
At 1st July 2007 RZZEZLFELH—H —
Addition R 1,408
At 30th June 2008 RZFEZENFNA=TH 1,408

10  FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN 10 ERRELEEPZER
PROGRESS
Films in
Film rights progress Total
HAEF
B IRE ZE¥ oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T
Group AEE
Cost DN
At 1st July 2007 RZEE+FLHA—H 553,932 67,776 621,708
Additions R 6,179 68,082 74,261
Transfers ELE 82,504 (82,504 —
Write-off of expired film rights 3 HAEE &2 hn i 2 58 (38,229) — (38,229)
S AUSOUTunci2005 RN R=FZN\FRA=TR 604386 £ et
Accumulated amortization and ZETEER
impairment RE
At 1st July 2007 RZEE+FEA—H 509,054 — 509,054
Amortization for the year FEHH 83,182 — 83,182
Impairment losses BEEE 4,786 — 4,786
. Write-off of expired film rights 3 HATE &2 hn 2 58 (38,229) — (38,229)
2 _MaOhne2008 RSFENFAASTR 6798 — 56793
¢
= Net book value RHFE
= At 30th June 2008 R-FFNFAA=1A 45,593 53,354 98,947
o
3 At 30th June 2007 RZZEZ+FA=1H 44,878 67,776 112,654
S
Amortization of approximately HK$83,182,000 (2007: B 584075 %£83,182,0000T (—ZE+
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HK$72,215,000) is included in the cost of turnover in the
consolidated income statement.

BRZERBERAA -

& BET72 215,0007T) B BIEELS S E
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10  FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN 10 HBREWmEREEPZEE @)
PROGRESS (Continued)
Films in
Film rights progress Total
(]
B MRE ZE¥ s
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T
Group rEE
Cost X 7R
At 1st July 2006 RZEEFLH—H 659,061 62,851 721,912
Additions N 7,110 86,037 93,147
Transfers 5 81,112 (81,112) —
Write-off of expired film rights I BA & 57 hin e 2 1 55 (193,351) — (193,351)
S Ate0tunei2007E N R=FBLFXA=TAR 863932 e el
Accumulated amortization and 2t
impairment KRB
At 1st July 2006 RZZEZFELA—H 626,177 — 626,177
Amortization for the year FEHEE 72,215 — 72,215
Impairment losses REBE 4,006 — 4,006
Write-off of expired film rights S HAE 5 i 2 SR (193,344) — (193,344)
B R=ZBFLFRA=TR 509054 = — 509,054
Net book value REHE
At 30th June 2007 R-ZZZ+EXA=1H 44,878 67,776 112,654
11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11 KMEAR#E
Company
PN
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T -3
B F
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD - A E 70,606 52,052 % %
2 £
As disclosed in Notes 20 and 21, on 21st August 2007, AN FE20 K 21F7 S - R EF )\ # %
the Company granted 143,460,537 share options to AZ+—H - AAaEE143,460,53717 Ei%
certain employees of the Group. The share options were BERhETAEE ETES - ILEFER 7

HEARREEmMEEERENEHE X
KA {8 &5 %18,553,6087T ©

vested immediately and the fair value of the share options
at the grant date was HK$18,553,608.
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11
(Continued)

Fff J§ A /] 2 & ()

% B Bl A TR SR ] & A an
W RFHEARRR 2B wE £ (M8

The amount was credited to equity as “share-based
compensation reserve” with corresponding debit to
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“investments in subsidiaries” in the Company’s financial
statements, and debit as “share-based compensation”
in the consolidated income statement, respectively.

NEREIR - RIATRD BB B AZE

BEmRA -

No registered Chinese names for these companies.

The following is a list of the subsidiaries as at 30th June LATARRZZEZNGEFAA=THZHNE
2008: NCIE-
Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued Percentage of equity Principal activities
Name kind of legal entity share capital held by the Company and place of operation
EA LS B&T KA TERB
#8 REEERER RABE ENEpild REXHBE
Direct Indirect
Ef GBS
*Universe Films (Holdings) British Virgin Islands, Ordinary US$100 100 = Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited limited liability company
RBRRAES LRRRA100%T 100 — RAZR B
ARELEAR
Universe Laser & Video Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 100 Distribution of films in various
Co. Limited limited liability company videogram formats
in Hong Kong
ETRASTARAR &k BRREAR LERRA - 100 DRREEHARTER
7%%1,000,0007C &k
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Sub-licensing of film rights and
Company Limited limited liability company film exhibition in Hong Kong
ETTRETERAR &% BERREAA LERRAEST - 100 EREZMERIZHY - BF
Universe Interactive Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$100 — 100 Operation of a web site
limited liability company in Hong Kong
RFEMMRERDA &% ERAREAHA ERRRAER100T - 100 fE@ - BR
Universe Information Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$10,000 — 100 Distribution of films in various
Technology Limited limited liability company 5% deferred videogram formats
HK$10,000 in Hong Kong
EFAMRBERAR &k ERRLAF LRRRA - 100 IRREEHARTER
> 7%10,0007 B
Z SRR
s 10,0007
=
E Universe Management Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$10,000 — 100 Provision of management
% Services Limited limited liability company 5% deferred services for the Group
: HK$10,000 in Hong Kong
3 ETREERERAT &% BERAREAA LRRRA - 100 AASEREEERE &4
“ #%%10,0007
5%ELRRA
7#%10,0007

* b5 R R S A R A
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation and

Particulars of
issued

R} J§ A /] 2 & ()

Percentage of equity

Principal activities

Name kind of legal entity share capital held by the Company and place of operation
A L B B&f RRFME TERHB
&R REEEREs RAEE REBDL REXBEH
Direct Indirect
E& [
Universe Entertainment British Virgin Islands, Ordinary US$2 = 100 Investment in films production
Limited limited liability company and licensing of film rights
in Hong Kong
ETREBRAF ABRNEE LRERRA2ET - 100 RABTAELRLERME
BRELAH &k
*Universe Pictures International British Virgin Islands, Ordinary US$2 - 100 Film acquisition agent
Limited limited liability company for the Group in Hong Kong
ABRARE LRRRA2ET - 100 REBZTRRERE - BB
BRAEAT
Universe Property Investment Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Properties holding and rental
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
ETNERABRAA & BRELAH EERRAES T - 100 BERLANE  FE
Universe (China) Development Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited limited liability company and investment in television
series production in
the People’s Republic of China
EF(PE)AEARAR &k BRELAR LRRBAEST - 100 REER  BERRARFER
BAER - PEARANE
*Globalink Advertising Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Advertising agent for the Group
limited liability company in Hong Kong
& ARELAR LRRERES2L - 100 REBZEERE &k
Century Creator Company Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Investment in films production
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
R EEERAT & ARAMLAH TRRRAESL — 100 RAETAME BR
Matrix Productions Company Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment in films production 2
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong &=
HRREBRAR &k BRELAR ERRRAES T - 100 RAETHE BE
3
Digital Programme Production Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Production of infotainment i3
Limited limited liability company programme in Hong Kong f
FEHEREBERAT & ARELAHF ERRRAES T - 100 REREEADE BB EE
G|
Universe International Hong Kong , Ordinary HK$2 = 100 Purchasing agent for the Group
Technology Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
ETERRRERAR &k ARALAH ERRRAB®T - 100 REEZRBAE &

No registered Chinese names for these companies.

* A EN M X B e
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 11

(Continued)

Place of
incorporation and

Particulars of
issued Percentage of equity

Fff J§ A /] 2 & ()

Principal activities

Name kind of legal entity share capital held by the Company and place of operation
EMA LS B&{T EGligs: TERB
8 REEERER RABE REEAL REXHBE
Direct Indirect
B 5E:
Universe Artiste Management Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$10 — 100 Management of contracted
Limited limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong
ETEAERARAH &% BERREAA LRRRAEBI0T - 100 ERANEA B
*Films Station Production Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Films production in Hong Kong
Limited limited liability company
&% BERREAA LRRRAERL - 100 EYAME BE
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Licensing & sublicensing of music
limited liability company programmes in Hong Kong
ETEEARAA &% BERREAA LRRRAERT - 100 RN RERE R RE - BB
Universe Information & Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Inactive
Entertainment Limited limited liability company
ETRRARERAR &% ERREAA LRRRAERL - 100 EEER
Universe Industrial Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Inactive
Development Limited limited liability company
ETIFERARAR &% ERREAA LRRRAERL - 100 EEER
Universe Intellectual Property Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Inactive
Limited limited liability company
ETARERERAR &% ERREAA LRRRAERL - 100 EEER
Joy Talent Investment Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$1 — 100 Property holding in
limited liability company the People’s Republic of China
EKERERRARA &% BERREAA ERRRARBIT - 100 WERE  PEARANE
*Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$2 — 100 Sublicensing of film rights
>Z> % Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
Z 2 &% BERREAA LRRRAERL - 100 BREFME  BF
zZ
z - Mutual Faith Investment Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$100 - 100 Property development
8 Z] limited liability company in Hong Kong
g% EEREBRAA &% BERREAA ERRRAEB1007 - 100 NEER BE
*35 Elite Master Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$1,000 - 100 Inactive
>Z> limited liability company
E FEEEERAA &% BERREAA LRRARAES,000T - 100 EEEx
S
% * No registered Chinese names for these companies. * A= /NCINE: 35 Ll =L i
9]
Z
=
=
o)
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

12 Wi ml s

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF 2T EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Share of net liabilities ERFaRE - (715)
Amount due from an associated JE Wi Bt
company NRIFRIE - 1,505
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE R - (790)
Investment at cost: WELKAE -
Unlisted shares 3 R (D - 1

On 28th April 2008, Universe (China) Development
Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, acquired 600 ordinary shares of HK$1 each of
Elite Master Holdings Limited (“Elite”) at cash
consideration of HK$600. As a result of this acquisition,
the Group’s shareholding in Elite increased from 40% to
100%. Elite is indirectly held by the Company.

R-ZEZNFWB=-+N\H  KARaEZ
MEE2EMNBARIEF (PR AEER
ARINR SR EBBE0OTTEAELEEE
BR AR ([Z£4]) 6008 &I HE & 1
TERRRG o AELIBERE  A5EH
RELERIFIR S R40%EIMNE100% © =
EHRAABIEERE o

—_

5= AR |
A EERE AR

\

9
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13

14

INTEREST IN JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ASSETS

The Group has entered into three jointly controlled asset
arrangements to distribute television series (2007: three).
The Group has participating interests ranging from 60%
to 80% in these joint ventures. As at 30th June 2008, the
aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities recognized in

13

K [w) 2 ] 5 E E A
7 B B 8T 7 = I8 3t R ) 4 B R B

BHESE ﬁ@%%ﬂ == 7‘\:¢ =18) °
REEBREEEETEHEHEBHCOBE
80% 2 2z - RZTENF A=
+H - BEARSER I IELREGIEE
RH2ERTF - ERGE M BEWmER T

the consolidated financial statements relating to the RZRFAEERAGBWT :
Group’s interests in these jointly controlled asset
arrangements are as follows:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Assets BE
Television series rights BARBE B 2,551 3,196
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R - 4,884
Prepayments TR 5RIR - 747
2,551 8,827
Liabilities =N
Accounts payable JE 1~ BR 3K 369 4,579
Deposits received BEWET & 535 335
904 4,914
Income PN 693 41,836
Expenses £H (2,902) (41,445)
(Loss)/profit after income tax FRFTSEI& (B518) /&8 F (2,209) 391
LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT 14 RHHITHEX

The long-term bank deposit was fixed and denominated
in United States dollars. Interest was receivable semi-
annually and interest rate was linked to the London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate. On 4th March 2008, the long-term bank
deposit was redeemed.

RHRITFS EIIE&L/(%TEF%,%;:%’
il o MEREFFRIT— /A&ﬂ
WBIRITREFRERE - R=F 7)\¢
=—AWA - tkRHES T_/TAEET@ o
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15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 15 REWER
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—BENF —TTt%E
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Accounts receivable JfE Uk BR 3R 35,084 27,928
Less: Provision for impairment of o EERER 2
accounts receivable Ve REREL] (4,834) (2,290)
Accounts receivable — net V5 JFE UK BR 3R 30,250 25,638
The carrying amount of the Group’s accounts receivable NEE 2 FEIER R BREE N T3 B
are denominated in the following currencies: FI{E -
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T EEE T
— HK$ — AT 26,266 17,421
— United States dollars (“US$”) — X7 3,565 406
— Renminbi (‘RMB”) — ARM 419 7,811
30,250 25,638
The carrying amount of accounts receivable approximates EWEFREMEREES A A FER
to their respective fair values. Ao
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet REEH - T*Eﬂ 2 B B R
date is the fair values of accounts receivable disclosed Lt ERER R AT E -
above.

-3
&
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15

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

As at 30th June 2008, the ageing analysis of the accounts

receivable was as follows:

15

JRE WL HR 3 (&)

R-ZZBZENFERNA=TH  BRERZ
Rl AT

Group

AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
Current to 90 days BNEAZ=90H 27,829 11,808
91 days to 180 days 91H £ 180H 1,443 10,920
Over 180 days 180H A E 978 2,910
30,250 25,638

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of 7

days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing and

sub-licensing of film rights are on open account terms.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to

accounts receivable, as the Group has a large number of

customers, and are internationally dispersed.

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

HERBREMZEER/BHTAECOR T
Fo-BYRR RENEBREZHREZ
HEX YUK LT -

FEUERTEETNEERR  BAAX
SEHEBERZER i@'ﬁﬁ"tﬁ?‘xiﬂ

MR R MER B 2 BT -

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1st July HnEtHA—H 2,290 395
Provision for receivables FEUBR TR 2
impairment B 2,544 2,000
Receivables written off during F T RAReUE
the year as uncollectible 9 FE UK AR 0 8 - (105)
At 30th June MRINA=+H 4,834 2,290
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 15 BRI @)
The Group has recognized a loss of HK$2,544,000 (2007: HE_ZTTZN\FAA=ZTHLFER
HK$2,000,000) for the impairment of its accounts ANEE A BRI AR ERREES
receivable during the year ended 30th June 2008. The D 544 000 (ZZEELF : B
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to a film 2,000,0007z) ° {ERIRE-EKEREE
licensee, the recoverability of which is in doubt. The loss THEBE—BTRERFEA - AEKERRX
has been included in other operating expenses in the Z AW EMERNEESTE o WWIREEE B
consolidated income statement. During the year ended TR BERaRANZHMEEERF - &
30th June 2007, the provision of HK$105,000 was written E_FTHFNAZTHLEFER A
off from the allowance account as there was no 737 4 T8 B BE SMEN Bl 52 £ FIE - BB
expectation that the amount can be recovered. #£105,0007T &Y £ & P8 <1 AR P ey o
Save as a bank’s guarantee of HK$90,000 provided to Br— R PR EEE 90,000 SRITER T
the Group by a customer, the Group does not hold any REBIN - REBW J|IFH ERER D
collateral as security. ERER o
[
INVENTORIES 6 #8
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Raw materials JR#E 1,985 1,725
Finished goods LR 6,885 11,721
8,870 13,446
Less: Provision for slow-moving B ORHEEE
inventories BiE (3,059) (4,449)
5,811 8,997

The cost of inventories recognized as expenses and

included in cost of turnover amounted to approximately

HK$9,180,000 (2007: HK$12,577,000).

GFERAFERASERWHI A EEEK
NE) SR8 H AT 478 109,180,0007T (=&
T4 : B E12,577,0007T) ©

— R
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17 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 17 O RITER
Group
REH
2008 2007
—EENF —EE+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok
Pledged bank deposits BEBRITERK 2,000 4,000
Denominated in: AT ZEESIE :
— HK$ — BT 2,000 4,000

18

At 30th June 2008, bank deposits pledged as security
for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 35) amounted to
HK$2,000,000 (2007: HK$4,000,000).

R-ZBEZENENA=1H8 - AiEREE
ZiR1TRYE (B 5E35) IR M AR 1T IE K
75 #2,000,0007C (ZEELF : B

4,000,0007T) ©

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 Bi&RBl&EMEY
Group Company
PN | ¥ NG
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE S —ZEEN\E “ET+E
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cash at bank RITHEE 5,951 4,605 53 78
Cash in hand FERE 75 30 - —
Short-term bank deposits RERITER 139,133 130,419 - 2,473
145,159 135,054 53 2,551
Maximum exposure to FERBH
credit risk SEkE 145,084 135,024 53 2,551
Denominated in: TRFIEE5IE -
— HK$ — B 144,904 134,734 53 2,551
— Thai Baht — Rk 185 13 - —
—US$ — £ 6 224 - —
— RMB — AR 29 2 - —
— Other currencies — HiEE 35 81 - =
145,159 135,054 53 2,551

The effective annual interest rate on short-term bank
deposits is ranged from 1.58% to 2.23% (2007: ranged
from 2.65% to 4.65%); these deposits have an average
maturity of 74 days (2007: 193 days).

RHBRTERNERENE 51,5822
223B (—ZEZTLF : 2.65[EF4.65
B) : hEEFEZNFHEHER A74K

—TTF  193K)

o
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SHARE CAPITAL 19 A
Number of Issued and
ordinary shares fully paid
ZEBREE CRTRZEAR
HK$’000
BT
At 30th June 2008 and RZZEZENFAA=THK
30th June 2007 RZEELFA=1H 1,624,605,370 32,492
The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 5,000 3B A Y% TE 81 B 4258 &5,000,000, OOO
million shares (2007: 5,000 million shares) with a par value i (=Z=Z £ : 5,000,000,0000%)
of HK$0.02 per share (2007: HK$0.02 per share). All REEAEE0.02TL (ZEZL4F : lﬂx
shares issued are fully paid. HEB0.027T) - FIAEETRMDHEE
ZHEBRE °
SHARE OPTIONS 20 R

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 26th November 2003, the
Company conditionally approved and adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 21st August 2007, the Company granted 143,460,537
share options to certain employees of the Group at the
subscription price of HK$0.264 per share option which
were vested immediately and exercisable for a two-year
period between 21st August 2007 and 20th August 2009
(both days inclusive). Each share option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. None of the share options has been exercised
or cancelled for the period from 21st August 2007 to 30th
June 2008. There was no share options granted prior to
21st August 2007 under the Scheme.

$ETFB’\_$$f¢+*H —TREERR
BERELERBBZ —RERRE
= AR Tﬂ?ﬁ%%/’é BEXZMERRA
BlFE 77 E AR RIA R HLE R R — B
Perest 8 ([FER R &) -

REZZZELFENAZ+—H ' AREUE
AR FREEE S 160.264 T (11143,460,5371%
BB R AR ERE (R 45
J\ﬂ +—HERE=FEFAFNA=+HH

C BIEEEMR) RITEZBRETA
%.Z%:HEE\ ° t1‘ﬁﬁﬂxﬁw%hﬁ/\
ERRBAQNRZ —REBERD - A=F

E+ENAZ+—HBHE-ZEZ)\F A=
+ B AR W A R AR A 1 TE sk TS o TR
TEEENAZ+—HAT > EERESE
AR R ARAE o

=
i
B
£
i
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F
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20

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the
period at the measurement date at 21st August 2007 of
HK$18,553,608 was determined under the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model and based on the following
assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 4.012%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 102.83%

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model requires input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the risk-free
interest rate and the expected stock price volatility.
Because changes in the subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate, the Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model does not necessarily provide a
reliable measure of the fair value of the share options.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 23rd November 2007 (the “2007
AGM”), the Company approved the refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit, which is 10% of the total number
of issue shares of the Company at the date of the 2007
AGM, under the Scheme. After the refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit, the total number of share option
available for issue under the Scheme as at 30th June 2008
was 162,460,537, which represented 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 30th June 2008.

On 16th July 2008, all share options outstanding as at
30th June 2008 were surrendered by the relevant holders
and then cancelled. The corresponding share-based
compensation was not reversed to the consolidated
income statement, and the reserve was directly transferred
to the retained earnings of the Group.

20

I HE ()

RZZEZLFNAZ+—AH - EltE=E
H AR 3 78— ﬁm%%ﬁ*ﬁﬁmﬁh
T2 RE& 5 BARLEREZ
/A?Tﬁﬁ/aﬁ%s,%smsﬁ :

4 3| [ A1) =& 4.012%
78 HA s AR A HA IR 24
78 HA R g = 102.83%

A —ET AT E B R ZRIEH
SEIBRR  SRERRAN X RIS
PRERE - ERETBRROEB A Y
PRfAETMAFEELEEATE - Bitfh
Her—ETRATHIRE BRI R BIRHA
SHBREATE-

RER-_ZTLF+—-A=-+=HE1T
ZREBEFRE ([Z2ZLFRREF
Reg) bBBZ —HEBRREZR AR
A /E IR R A AR AT Bl R B L

R+t FREAFAEEAZ
Ei?*f?ﬂxf\ﬁ@§¥221096 BT ET SR
ERZ%E RZEENFASA=+HZ

Wﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂx%%@ﬁkgﬁmz 460,537
o HMER-_EENFA=THAR
Al Z B &N 210% °

RZZZNFELA+TARE FER-ZE
ZENFERNA=ZTHRRTENBRED
MEMZ2EANROREKEH - AR
B AR {0 RN I B AR A HEEE R A E B
Mz EREREAEB 2 RER
MZA -
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21  SHARE PREMIUM AND OTHER 21 B i 18 % At o
RESERVES
(a) GROUP (a) A
Reserve Share-based
Share arisingon  Revaluation ~ compensation
premium  consolidation reserve reserve Total
GRERA
RkiEE ity EffRE  ROBMRRH ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB BB
At 1st July 2007 RZZTrELA-H 127,21 821 453 — 128,485
Grant of share options BRELRL - - - 18,554 18554
Deferred income tax fikgy
adjustment upon EECER
the change in tax rate FEHAE - - 5 - 5
At 30th June 2008 RZZENE
~AZTH 127,211 821 458 18,554 147,044
At 1st July 2006 RIFENELA-H 127,211 821 1673 - 129,705
Revaluation reserve HEREMZ
adjustment upon disposal Ef7Ef
of investment properties HERE - - (1,220) - (1,220)
At 30th June 2007 RZTRLE
~A=TH 127,211 821 453 - 128,485
(b) COMPANY (b) A
Share-based
Share Contributed  compensation
premium surplus reserve Total i E
=
R EE EHEH 1R 47 % B 4 By e |
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 Ak
BT BETT BETT BETT e
WA
x
At 30th June 2007 RZEE+E A=TH 127,211 51,852 — 179,063 %
Grant of share options B f#E 2 5% H! — — 18,554 18,554
At 30th June 2008 RZZEENF A=TH 127,211 51,852 18,554 197,617
At 30th June 2007 RZEE+E A=TH 127,211 51,852 — 179,063
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RESERVES (continuea)

(b)

COMPANY (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
for the issued shares of Universe Films (Holdings)
Limited and the value of net assets of the
underlying subsidiaries acquired on 28th June

(b)  AAFE (&)

KRR BEHRERTIARRF]RRER
Universe Films (Holdings) Limited
Z B EITIRID T EITARRA BIRMD
ZHEEER—-NAANFERAZT
NBEFEERB LRz EEFE
ZERE -BREARE-NN—F

1999. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of ’ATR& (& ;.TZF) fE”H'H_fEEME

Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus 2R TIER - MEBAH

shall not be distributed to the shareholders if there /%ﬁv\/ffi %Hxﬁ

are reasonable grounds for believing that:

0] the Company is, or would after the payment 0) RRA)E RN IR % 8
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they NEZIHZEE =%

become due; or

(i) the realizable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate

(i) ARBZEEANZEEE
SRR MEEEEREE

of its liabilities and its issued share capital B BTN KRR 5 % B
and share premium accounts. Rz 4ME -
At Group level, the contributed surplus is RAEEME - BERZKREN

reclassified into its components of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)

SUBSIDIARIES AND THE
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. All balances are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars and approximate to their respective

fair values.

22

AEBMB AR 2 -

HE Wi/ (RE ) Wit 24 ) 3
P e A 2

IR AREREER  RERARER
B& - FTAA ﬁ%’%‘?b{%mﬁ% HER
HEEANFEMES

B %
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND
DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The carrying amount of the Group’s accounts payable and
deposits received are approximate to their respective fair
values and are denominated in the following currencies:

23

AEBZEMNERRE W€ 2 REE
HEHEXBHNAFERERATIIEES
B :

Group

rEH
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
— HK$ — BT 20,738 22,729
—Uus$ — % 12,607 7,682
— RMB — AR¥ 3,840 8,602
— Singapore dollars — BT 52 52
37,237 39,065

As at 30th June 2008, the ageing analysis of the accounts
payable was as follows:

R_ZENFRNA=Z1+H  BNERZ
BRER D ATIA T

Group

AEE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current to 90 days BNHAZ=90H 2,450 1,551
91 days to 180 days 91HZ=180H 213 138
Over 180 days 180H A £ 3,251 3,453
5,914 5,142

-3
£ F
%
I\ B
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24

25

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 24

LEASES

As at 30th June 2008, the Group’s obligations under

finance leases were repayable as follows:

il 5 AL B R 4f
RZFB\FXA=+H AEEZH

=
EHEARARWMLATFHREAEE :

Group
2008 2007
—EENF ZETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within one year —FA 78 40
In the second year F_F 69 29
In the third to fifth year E=FFRF 114 37
261 106
Future finance charges on BhE T S A IE
obligations under finance leases ZARREE X H - —
Present value of obligations B & B
under finance leases ZHE 261 106
The present value of obligations B & B
under finance leases was ZBE
as follows: LU
Within one year —FR 78 40
In the second year E_F 69 29
In the third to fifth year FE=FFRF 114 37
261 106
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 25 oAb R AR
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF ZTTELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Obligations under finance leases BhE T S AR
(Note 24) (Kftzt24) 183 66




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o B B R W RE

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 26 BIEFREH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when ERAAEAHTENBREMIEEER
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax REVBEEERE  BEEMSHER
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred [ — B IR - BRI REPTIS T B &=
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset HEEEGEEEE HIENSENT

amounts are as follows:

Group Company
X&5E AN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\E e e —EENE - 3
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
BETT BET T BETT BETT
Deferred income tax assets BRI EE (5,076) (5,762) (311) (302)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFTEHAE 3,691 3,446 - =
(1,385) (2,316) (311) (302)
The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet REEGEEBBRRP R EEBEU
include the following: N
2008 2007
—BENF —TTt%E
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BE T
Deferred tax income assets HBim12ME A #
to be recovered after W B 7 35 iE
more than 12 months St & E (5,076) (5,762)
Deferred tax income liabilities HBiE121E A %
to be settled after S EH 2 IR
more than 12 months FisHiasE 3,691 3,446

— R
==
% M
I\ B
WA
A
N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 26

The movement of the deferred income tax (assets)/

liabilities during the year is as follows:

WA BE (8)

FRNELEMEH (BE)/ABZEHN
T

Group Company
PN 3] N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EINF S s —EEN\E “ZTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT BETT BRI
Beginning of the year =) (2,316) 3,445 (302) (264)
Deferred income tax RiZABEERA
charged/(credited) to Nk (E#) 2
consolidated income EREFER
statement (Note 30) (K35E30) 936 (5,502) 9) (38)
Deferred income tax arising HMET R
from a decrease in tax rate BRI
credited to equity STARRA (5) — - -
Deferred income tax HERENE
transferred to retained BEE
earning upon the disposal RE&TZ
of investment properties ERATET - (259) - —
End of the year FIR (1,385) (2,316) (311) (302)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses

carried forward to the extent that realization of the related

tax benefit through the future taxable profit is probable.

The Group has unrecognized tax losses of
HK$24,012,000 (2007: HK$6,073,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. The tax losses have no

expiry date.

EIEFTSHE & Ty FEAR R 75 Fl 2 7]
FRARRERT N ERMAAEE
BMIBEBIERR - AEEERERTIE
BB 124,012,000 (ZZTZTLF : B
#6,073,0007T) A] 45 8% LA K 85 K 2R fE 2R
WA o BB ELEREA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o B B R W RE

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 26 EIEFRFB (2)

The movement of deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRNELEMEHEERBEZEE (EF
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation — B[R 2 AR SR A0 F ¢

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Group REH
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHAE
Accelerated tax
depreciation and total
MEHRIBFER A
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST
Beginning of the year E?ﬂ 3,710 9,317
Charged/(credited) to AHEERN
consolidated income statement ?D Br/(GGTA) 392 (5,348)
Credited to revaluation reserve T AE MR
(Note 21(a)) (Bt zE21(a)) (5) —
Transferred to retained earnings R ERE AT - (259)
End of the year Fax 4,097 3,710
Deferred income tax assets BEEFMBHEE
Tax losses and total
HEBEEREE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T EEE T = %
2T
Beginning of the year i%}] (6,026) (5,872) e
Charged/(credited) to AHEERN 2 £
consolidated income statement ?D B/ (G A) 544 (154) # %
X
End of the year FR (5,482) (6,026) |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 26

27

Company

Deferred income tax assets

WA BE (8)
AAT

EEFFEREE

Tax losses and total

HEEERARE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Beginning of the year F] (302) (264)
Credited to consolidated income RirEEERAN
statement A (9) (38)
End of the year Fax (311) (302)
OTHER GAINS — NET 27 Hhukss — HH
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ok
Interest income F B A 4,878 6,054
Sponsorship income TR BB 992 76
Deposits and payables forfeited & KBRS 48 153
Net exchange gain B s 176 —
Screening income A=A 174 70
Others HAth 179 11
6,447 6,364




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

»/T

28

o B B oA Bk

EXPENSES BY NATURE 28 HMESBZEH
Expenses included in cost of turnover, selling expenses, DITEEEENA - SHEER - THEHA
administrative expenses and other operating expenses, FEMEEERAANNERSTAT :
are analyzed as follows:
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—ZENE T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Amortization of film rights ER AL 23
(Note 10) (FFEE10) 83,182 72,215
Amortization of leasehold land T & - b 3 55
(Note 6) (Bt 5E6) 301 238
Depreciation of owned assets BEBEZINE
(Note 7) (B 5E7) 1,570 1,450
Depreciation of leased assets HEEEZIE
(Note 7) (B &E7) 89 90
Impairment losses of film rights B R 2 BB
(Note 10) (FftzE10) 4,786 4,006
Impairment losses of film deposits BRI 22 REBE 271 627
Provision for impairment of JiE W BR 3R
accounts receivable BB AR 2,544 2,000
Provision for slow-moving EIHTE
inventories 2 B 1,333 1,243
Provision for investment in i RN/NE]
an associated company IR E R - 15
Loss on disposal of property, HEMFE - HER
plant and equipment Bl ok 11 114
Write-off of expired film rights EI| HA B &2 hin 42 2 il 55 - 7
Write-off of inventories 7 & ss 214 143
Employee benefits expenses BEBAMFAXZ
(Note 29) (F7%29) 39,224 21,118
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKRA 9,180 12,577
Advertising costs & AR 2,026 1,441
Direct operating expenses arising EEXHe AR
from investment properties that TEMER
generate rental income BEEEEER 186 445
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI Bl & 690 650

— R
5
% M
I\ B
A
A
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A o W AR M R

29

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 29 BB A B X
On 1st December 2000, a Mandatory Provident Fund R-ZZZEZF+_H—HB  ARFEIEAR
scheme (“the MPF scheme”) was set up for employees, EE (BEMNTES) I —HAFER
including the executive directors. Under the MPF scheme, BT E ([AEeEE) - BERES
the Group’s contributions are at 5% of employees’ relevant T8 AEBEZHARFEIREE 2B BK
income as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident A (E&ERBBAHERESFTEHEE)
Fund Schemes Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,000 5%tE - BREESACHRERAEE
per employee per month. The employees also contribute #1,0007T © HEER T =F—H—
a corresponding amount to the MPF scheme if their H 2 Al B AW A ST AiBi@AE4,0007T
relevant income is more than HK$4,000 per month before FRZZEZE=F_H—HZEZBBK
1st February 2003 and HK$5,000 after 1st February 2003. AT ABiEE 5,000t © IMERRES
The MPF contributions are fully and immediately vested FTEIELABESE <R - BB aiH
in the employees as accrued benefits once they are paid. HZE 2 RANEREEZR
FTHER o
Group
rEHE
2008 2007
—EENF —EE+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I
Wages and salaries T & K 16,796 18,132
Provision for unutilized annual RE)AF R
leave B 206 —
Provision for long service payment REIBRTS & 2 B 60 —
Staff welfare ST 3,164 2,528
Pension costs RIRE R A
— defined contribution plan — REH-KETE 444 458
Share-based compensation % 173 3 A
— selling expenses (Note 20) — HEE A (fizE20) 1,282 —
— administrative expenses — 1THEA
(Note 20) (Ff¥5£20) 17,272 —
Total (including directors’ BE(ARES
emoluments) <) 39,224 21,118




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

»/T

29

o B B oA Bk

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 29 fRE®EM M Z @)
(Continued)
(a) DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR (a) W R ARE PN B 24

MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of each director for the year HE_ZTZNFAA=THILF
ended 30th June 2008 is set out below: B SEEHNHFMOT
Salary,
housing Employer’s
allowances, contribution
and benefits Discretionary  to retirement Share-based
Fees in kind bonuses scheme  compensation Total
¥& ER BIRGHE
Name of directors EEpg he BRERENANZ hiEke B gt g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BETT BETFT BETT BETT BEFT
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil WNR L& = 1,838 553 12 1,786 4,189
Ms Chiu Suet Ying BERLT - 1,838 553 12 1,786 4,189
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRELE - 545 46 12 1,786 2,389
Mr Ng Kwok Tung mEREE 82 - — — - 82
Mr Chiu Shin Koi BERLE 82 - - - - 82
Mr Ma Ting Hung BREERE 83 - - - - 83

The remuneration of each director for the year

ended 30th June 2007 is set out below: Z - %%%H’J%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂ
Salary,

housing Employer’s

allowances, contribution

and benefits Discretionary to retirement
Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total

2 REE RINGHE
Name of directors Ex=ng we ZUHRENFZ misRe EEXHEX okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil M/NBR ST A — 2,640 2,500 12 5,152
Ms Chiu Suet Ying HERZ T — 2,640 150 12 2,802
Mr Yeung Kim Piu BRI LE - 569 44 12 625
Mr Ng Kwok Tung mERESE 80 — — — 80
Mr Chiu Shin Koi HERLE 80 — — — 80
Mr Ma Ting Hung BEEEE 80 — — — 80

Directors’ fees disclosed above include
HK$247,000 (2007: HK$240,000) paid to the
independent non-executive directors.

No directors waived emoluments in respect of the
year ended 30th June 2008 (2007: same).

FiiEZREREEN TEILIE
HITEE 2 ML B 247, 0007
(ZZ=F : ABH240,0007T) °

BERESHEURDEBE_FTN
FRA=ZTHLEFEZME (CF
TLF  HR) °

— R
5
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A o W AR M R

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 29 REMmABEZ @@
(Continued)
(b) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (b) AR #H AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2007: three) directors whose emoluments are

reflected in the analysis presented above. The

REAREBRRERSHEALE
B=%(CZ2ZtF  =ZR)E
= REZMEFHER LERK
B HEBRMAB(CZETLEF W

emoluments payable to the remaining two (2007: B)RFEAZNSEENT ¢
two) individuals during the year are as follows:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
Basic salaries, housing EXFe  FE
allowances, other AL - HAth
allowances and benefits EIEREY)
in kind M 1,478 1,629
Share-based compensation %17 3 B 3,572 —
Contributions to retirement RIRGTE
scheme R 24 24
5,074 1,653

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HEFHETNASEBER

2008 2007
—EENEF —EE+F

Emolument bands (in HK$) HHEE (Bx)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ7%1,000,0007T - 2
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 7 #2,000,0007C 2 /5% 2,500,0007T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 75 #2,500,00175 £ 7% #3,000,0007C 1 —
2 2




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o B B R W RE

30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 30 Prfedi#E A/ (1814)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BBMNEHEIRBRARNEE 2 b5 B
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit HRBMAREI16.56% (L F
for the year. 17.5%) IR R 24 -
The amount of income tax expense/(credit) charged/ S &E A/ (E#) Rira Bk NS 8/
(credited) to the consolidated income statement GrA) 2&%MT :
represents:
Group
AEE
2008 2007
SE T VIVt WY
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong profits tax EBMED
Current year REE 101 10
Underprovision for previous BAEFERE
years & 11 —
Deferred income tax (Note 26) EIEFTIS T (HI5E26) 936 (5,502)
1,048 (5,492)
The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax AEEBRATER A (E518) /B F a9
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using 17 - IR E B AR &N EA RN
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the B ERMEEL 2 BRI AN =5
consolidated subsidiaries as follows: mr
2008 2007
SE T TVt W
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BREFSHLAT (B518) /& F (26,070) 6,034
Tax calculated at domestic tax EEAHABRNET
rates applicable to profits in ZE AR E M R
the respective countries FTE R FIE (4,302) 1,131 = g
Income not subject to taxation HIERR 2 WA (1,065) (1,297) §
Expenses not deductible for kL A
taxation purpose ZEH 3,299 203 i
Reversal of taxable temporary JERTE RS = 2 g %
differences [E] 4% - (5,644) M
Underprovision for previous years BEFERETR 11 — ’f_}
Tax losses not recognized RIER 2 TIBEE 2,960 115 "
Change in tax rate TEEF 145 —
Income tax expense/(credit) FriS i & R/ (= #) 1,048 (5,492)
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.5% MEFHEAZMER16.5% (ZFTE+

(2007: 18.7%). £ :18.7%) °
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A o W AR M R

31

32

33

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE 31  MESMR/ (HB2R) B
GAINS/(LOSSES)
The exchange differences recognized in the consolidated ERABEERNERNELEZEEET
income statement are included as follows: FIIER :
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —TEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Other gains — net Hh iz — B8 176 —
Other operating expenses Himg L&A - (62)
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 32 ARRAwERERFA NEAG O
THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE B) /& F
COMPANY
The (loss)/profit attributable to the equity holders of the AN TS IE B A FE(E (B18) /B FEA
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the NGB e el A S o= Y
Company to the extent of a loss of approximately ¥£302,0007C (—Z B+ 4F : BF4)EHE
HK$302,000 (2007: profit of approximately HK$37,000). 37,0007T) °
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 33 i (ER) /B
Basic B

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company over the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

FRER (B8 /BANREBEAR R BEER
B (B8 /8H - RAFAEET
BARNINETFHBREFE -

2008 2007
—EENF —ETEF
(Loss)/profit attributable to the equity RARIEREB ARG
holders of the Company (E18) /&8 F|
(HK$’000) (BEFT) (27,118) 11,526
Weighted average number of BETERARLY
ordinary shares in issue HNHE 39 25 1,624,605,370 1,624,605,370
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FRREA (B18)/

(HK cent(s) per share)

& (FRE)

(1.67) 0.71

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 30th June
2008 is not presented because the effect of the assumed
conversion of all diluted potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the year was anti-dilutive.

The diluted earnings per share for year ended 30th June
2007 is not presented as there was no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended 30th
June 2007.

R P R AR S A PO BT R AT (I B
ey vRRAEREEYE - QLD
MEIIBE-—TT\FAA=TALSE
2 SRBEHA -

AR -ETLFRNA=THILFALE
HEBNEETE 70 BTEBRKR - Ut
VEZ2INBE_TTLFRNA=THL
FEZ2EBREERRT -
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34 CASH GENERATED FROM 34 BEELEZBS
OPERATIONS
2008 2007
—ZENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Note 42)
(Pf5E42)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(EE)/&F (27,118) 11,526
Adjustment for: FARIFE :
— Income tax expense/(credit) - FEHER/ (Q#E)
(Note 30) (FFzE30) 1,048 (5,492)
— Depreciation of owned assets - BEBEZITE 1,570 1,450
— Depreciation of leased assets - HEBEZTE 89 90
— Amortization of leasehold land — & s 301 238
— Amortization of film rights — BRI 83,182 72,215
— Impairment losses of film rights — ERMEZREBRE 4,786 4,006
— Write-off of expired film rights — BT R R 2 5 - 7
— Increase in fair value of — BB
investment properties ZAFEE N (3,140) (1,611)
— Write-off of inventories — FEMSHE 214 143
— Loss on disposal of property, — HEWE  HER
plant and equipment w2 BE 11 114
— Gain on disposal of investment - HEREME
properties 2 Was - (8,776)
— Gain on disposal of non-current - HEREHEZ
assets held for sale FEMENE B 2 Mo - (1,653)
— Interest income = ﬂ SALPN (4,878) (6,054)
— Provision for investment in - REEREZ
an associated company &éfﬁé‘ﬁ - 15
— Share of loss of an associated — R E AR
company BB - 3
— Provision for impairment of — IR 2
accounts receivable B S 2,544 2,000
— Impairment losses of film deposits — BRI R REEE 271 627
— Provision for slow-moving — HHEFE
inventories R 1,333 1,243
— Share-based compensation — B&{n A 18,554 —
Changes in working capital: 2EEeE
— Film deposits - B % 57 5,756
— Inventories - &K 1,639 1,621
— Accounts receivable — FEUERFX (7,156) (11,329)
— Deposits paid and prepayments — BEfNEI & RFENFIEA 3,572 (2,282)
— Accounts payable — ERRR 772 (4,542)
— Other payable and accrued — HEMERR R
charges fE&T % (2,820) 2,381
— Deposits received — BlETE (2,600) 1,294
— Amount due to the ultimate — B RAER
holding company RIB (2 (83)
— Amount due from an associated — U= AR
company FIH - (18)
Cash generated from operations BEELAVZES 72,229 67,889

— R
5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

34 CASH GENERATED FROM 34
OPERATIONS (continueq)

BWEELEZEE @)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from ERABESRERN  LEWE - #5

sale of property, plant and equipment, investment

R BREVERFIEHEZERD

properties and non-current assets held for sale comprise: BENFEREE
2008 2007
—EENEF — 2T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Property, plant and equipment M WBERZE
Net book value (Note 7) AREFE (T aE7) 54 114
Loss on disposal of property, HEMF - Kz R
plant and equipment B i (11) (114)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMZE - KER
property, plant and equipment B ATIECE N 43 =
2008 2007
—2E\F —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT I
Investment properties REWE
Net book value (Note 8) IREFE (fiFsE8) - 27,349
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMSE
properties 2 W Es - 3,776
Proceeds from disposal of LERE Y
investment properties pATIECE - 31,125
o 2008 2007
- —sENF —TELAE
< Z HK$’000 HK$’000
= BT BT
= m
35 Non-current assets held for sale FEHEZHRBEE
57 Net book value AR EDFE - 31,650
§ 5 Gain on disposal of non-current LERIELEZ
% assets held for sale FETBE E W - 1,653
>
&
S Proceeds from disposal of RERIELEZ
% non-current assets held for sale EMBNE E ZFT1S K - 33,303
2
z
=
o
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34 CASH GENERATED FROM 34 BEELEZBSE ®
OPERATIONS (Continued)
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Obligations under finance leases R EHEAE
End of the year FR 261 106
Less: Ve
Beginning of the year F7) 106 194
Inception of finance leases FEImERE 249 -
Capital element of finance leases TNRERE
payments 2 BRE D (94) (88)
BANKING FACILITIES 35 RiTE

35

At 30th June 2008, banking facilities of approximately
HK$20 million (2007: HK$30 million) granted by banks to
the Group, of which none (2007: none) has been utilized
by the Group, were secured by the following:

0

(i)

charge on the time deposits of a subsidiary of the
Company of HK$2 million (2007: HK$4 million); and

corporate guarantees given by the Company.

R_ZEBENFENA=1H AEHEZ
fE R 1T IR 4L R 17 i & 4975 ¥ 20,000,000
L (ZEZ+F : B#30,000,0007T)
WA TP S IBERE - B ASELE
FRAFTRE (CTELE &)

() AARRE—REKBRRZESRF
B2 000,000 (ZEE +
£ ##4,000,0007T) {EE A
®

(ii) AARAREAFER -

—_

1

)

\
i\

5= AR |
A EERE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o W AR M R

36 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(@)

A court action was commenced in the Court of
First Instance of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region on 17th April 2002 by The
Star Overseas Limited (“Star”), an independent
third party, against Universe Entertainment Limited
(“UEL”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum of
US$935,871.65 (equivalent to HK$7,299,798.84)
was payable by UEL to Star as its share of the
revenue of the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the
“Movie”).

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the
High Court on 21st February 2003, the Company
was ordered and had paid to Star a sum of
HK$5,495,699.80, being part of the licence fee of
the Movie received by UEL from Miramax Films
(being the licencee of the Movie) and which was
also part of the sum claimed by Star. Pursuant to
the Order, UEL is also liable to pay Star interest in
the sum of HK$350,905.30 and some of the costs
of the application leading to the making of the
Order, all of which have been settled. As the Order
has not disposed of all the claims of
US$935,871.65 (equivalent to HK$7,299,798.84)
by Star, UEL is entitled to continue to defend the
claim by Star for recovering the remaining balance
in the sum of approximately HK$1,804,099.04
(HK$7,299,798.84 less HK$5,495,699.80).

36  ARPLFFHA

(a)

R_TTE_FMA+LEH - BL
F—EEBEBIERRA (2
B HARBREZ2ENB AR
ETREFRAA ([EFTRE])
K& BRI R [REAE EE R 7
—IERRERA ©

ERE FRAPIERE TR %
JE R E X 51935,871.65% T (1H%F
RiEEE7 299,798.847T) © 1EAD
E-WMEAIDMEBR]IZEE
([ZER]) 2BHRA -

BEEBSEEIRR _TT=F
—A-t+—BEEZES ([
L) BEFREEBSKERE
¥R i+ #55,495,699.807T ¢ Al
B TR X E 5 M Miramax
Films (BNEZ B 5% 2 iR iEFRF A A) |
Iz EBIDhREE &k 2B REZ 2B
PEFE - RIEZES  EFIRE
MAEAREBS NS B BE
350,905.807T 2 # B K B 5F i 48
SHBERHNER  EHEAEX
o ARSI ERGERE S
935,871.65% T (HHER B K
7,299,798.847T) Z B RE W
I EFIRE G REERERE
#T A B4 B 1 ,804,099.047T
(BN #67,299,798.84 7T 5 76
5,495,699.807T) Z IBE T
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36 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 30th April 2002, UEL issued a Writ of Summons
against the Star above for the latter’s wrongful
exploitation of certain rights in the Movie co-owned
by both parties. UEL claimed to recover loss and
damages suffered by UEL as a result of the
wrongful exploitation.

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser & Video
Co. Limited (“ULV”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company issued a Writ of
Summons against Star for the latter’s infringement
of the licensed rights in the Movie held by ULV.
ULV claimed to recover all loss and damages
suffered by ULV as a result of the said infringement.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the
claim against UEL will have no material financial
impact to the Group.

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. (“KPE”) issued a Writ of Summons
against among other persons, the Company, ULV
and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, (a director of the
Company), three of the defendants, in respect of
damages arising from infringement of the patents
owned by KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against the
Company, ULV and Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The
Board is of the opinion that the outflow of economic
benefits cannot be reliably estimated and
accordingly no provision for any liability that may
result has been made in the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2008, no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
directors to be pending against either the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

36 AR (&)
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37 COMMITMENTS 37
(a) OPERATING LEASES
As at 30th June 2008, the Group had future

aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

S ]

(a)

REtE
R-ZENEAA=+E &%
ERBE AT 2 KL HE R
RREZAN 2 RERENREELDR
T

Group

AEHE
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Land and buildings T RIEF

Not later than one year BB —5F 1,200 2,400

(b) OTHERS

As at 30th June 2008, the Group had
commitments contracted but not provided for in
these consolidated financial statements as follows:

(b)

HAty

R-ZZEZNFRA=1THE &
BERT QB RN 4R A B 15 R &
AN

Group

rEH
2008 2007
—EENEF —EE+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I

Purchase of film rights and B EE T RER

production of films B EUE 18,622 22,010

Note: As at 30th June 2008, the Group had no any
commitment in respect of jointly controlled

assets (2007: nil).

i RIEZENFERA=+HE A&
£ B0 SR AT AT B N AL R A
ENREEAE(CETLSF
) ©
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38 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 38 ARARKEME L

ARRANGEMENTS

As at 30th June 2008, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating

RZZBEZENFNA=1+H ' ~FEEBU
TR 2 & HE MR AR RME 2

leases as follows: RIEMEERE :
Group
xEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Not later than one year T B —F 688 1,059
Later than one year and i —F Rk
not later than five years BB F 420 352
1,108 1,411
39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39 BEANLEZRS
During the year ended 30th June 2008, the Group had HE_TZENFA=THILEZFE
the following significant transactions with related parties: A AREEEFEATHERIS N
T~
(@)  On 19th December 2006, ULV entered into a @ RZZEERF+_AT+IB =
tenancy agreement with Rainbow Nice Limited FREEEERAR([RE])

(“RNL”) whereby ULV agreed to lease a premises
(the “Premises”) from RNL for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1st January 2007 for the use of

Mr Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil and Ms Chiu Suet Ying, — R— BB - RN EAE

the directors of the Company for residential &t?@++ﬁi($“ﬂ2§$)ﬁﬁ

purpose. The monthly rental payable by ULV is EEER%E - RFHIEN 2 A

HK$200,000 which is inclusive of furniture, fixtures %ﬂi%/%m%zoo 0007T (B IR M ~ - %

and home electronic appliances but excluding RERREERR  EBETEFEM §

government rent, rates, taxes and all other oEZM - RIBRABEEME A

outgoings. The entire issued share capital of RNL, ) o E @EWMEZEE) 22F 2 ﬁj

the landlord of the Premises, is wholly owned by BRITRAAEERLT2ER WA

Ms Chiu Suet Ying. B - E§
i

During the year ended 30th June 2008, ULV paid
rental of HK$2,400,000 (2007: HK$1,200,000) to
RNL on apartment leased for directors.

\[mm \|

FRINHE W Bt BFES
RS ﬁ”ﬁﬂ%**’ﬁj%(ﬁzw
%D RY=F a-ZTTLF

@%\;_7 ZENFXRA=THLEZ
FE  BFEHFERAEEIMDE
%2,400,00075(_$$t¢ s
#1,200,0007C) fEAEEMHA 2
FEBEMHASD -
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39

40

41

42

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEANLZRG @)
(Continued)
(b) DETAILS OF KEY MANAGEMENT (b) = 3545 1 g it
COMPENSATION
Key management personnel are those FEEEABRBEE - BR
management with responsibility for planning, Rt REBEH 2 EEE -
directing and controlling the activities of the Group.
Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
Salaries and other short-term e Rk HAth5G HA
employee benefits EEEF 9,250 10,172
Employer’s contribution to RG]
retirement scheme EE 2K 60 60
Share-based compensation % 17 3% EAY
(Note 20) (Pft5E20) 10,505 —
19,815 10,232
Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these R EXFTHEE RILES @K R
consolidated financial statements, no other material N REEWEEI S EMERBHEEA
related party transactions have been entered into by the TRE cZERGE—MRATEBRK
Group. The transactions were carried out after AEEREEANTEZEET
negotiations between the Group and the related parties
in the ordinary course of business.
EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE 40 #HHHREFH
SHEET DATE
As disclosed in Note 20, on 16th July 2008, all share B E20FTIHE - RZEZENFLA
options outstanding as at 30th June 2008 were T8 FAERZEENFSA=1H
surrendered by the relevant holders and then cancelled. HMARITERERED A EERE ARE
The corresponding share-based compensation was not KRBT o FAHE R IR (5 #HhEH I 2R
reversed to the consolidated income statement, and the HABERRANEE  MzEHEElEEE
reserve was directly transferred to retained earnings of BERNEB ZREBEFNZA
the Group.
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 41 BBEBRAE
The directors regard Globalcrest Enterprises Limited, a EEDA RNEBRELBEESMK Y2
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as Globalcrest Enterprises Limited & 78 /A &
being the ultimate holding company of the Company. T EIERE AT o
COMPARATIVE FIGURES 42 Hles

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation. These
reclassification has no impact on the Group’s profit for
the year ended 30th June 2007 or the total equity as at
30th June 2007.

AETHERBRFEHRBFOBEUTAARF
BZE2HAR - ZFEHOELEEE
ECTZTHFRAZTHLEFEZARE
BREMNIN _FTLFA=1THZA
REELRE -
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43 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 43
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

AR B R R )\ 4R
AHQ+HE$EQJ%W
17 AR A2 B BB R ~ 5 Bl e

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE s ARCF g2

ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD

ENDED 30TH JUNE 2008

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial ﬁilﬂz REVBmEROERR - %
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following SR A S B EM A NMERT ~ FTERI K
amendments, new standards and interpretations which ﬁ%% BZEER] - FERRBRERE

are not yet effective for the accounting period ended EZTENF A=+ HIE S HRE W
30th June 2008 and which have not been adopted in these KA+ TR ARR ARG B 7S 7R 3% A 3%
consolidated financial statements: i

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
REUT BEis 2%
M ETHEEN

HKFRS 2 Amendment

Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

1st January 2009

ISR 2ERT PR AR 1 3R 2 55 B 1R 1 e R 88 —ETZNF-HA—H
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combination 1st July 2009

B B2 RN (BB ET) BERAH —ETNFLR—H
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 1st January 2009
A5 4ERI8 EEDE —ZEZAF—HA—H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1st January 2008
58 (BB BRE B 75 5 5 1 & B T N\F-H—H

ZEZEg) - 2E12
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
&5 (BBRFHRE
REZEY) - 2E13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

H5 (B #HRE
ZEZET) - 2E14
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

B (BRM B RS

REZEE)— #E15
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

a Foreign Operation = %

58 (BB BRE BINETSIR B IF R Z H —ZEENF+A—H =
2EBZEg)— 2E16 NS
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 1st January 2009 4 P
B (BT B 53Rk 2 2% —TThE—F—H g
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs 1st January 2009 g
AT ZERI23 (B 1EFT) fEEMRA —EENF-A—H n
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial 1st July 2009 |

SEER|27 (BIEET)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments
SRR
S EREET

Customer Loyalty Programmes

BEPEMERER

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

G EAM19 — REXHEEZ LR -
HEFEERRERGEE

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

P i EE i S thp ok

Hedges of a Net Investment in

Statements

SRE R IBN B RSk

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

ARG TAR
BRBELECEM

1st July 2008
—TT/\FtHA—H

1st January 2008

—ET\F-A—HR
1st January 2009
—ZEENF—H—H

1st October 2008

“EZNFEA—H
1st January 2009

“EENF-A—H
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43

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD
ENDED 30TH JUNE 2008 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations would be in the period of initial
application, but not yet in a position to state whether these
amendments, new standards and new interpretations
would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

43

CHAMRH AR E BT\ 4E
VAV Bt il & (oY i D
W AR BB T ~ BRI K
HRNEBAEREE @)

AEE AR FER - LR R
BEREARAPEEEXRNTE
B REEREE X FER] ~ FERA R
BeOHAKENRERE P HIR
ERERTE -



PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
FHEHREH B FEY %
HONG KONG FaE

Location Lot number Type Lease term
s B i B} B HEFH

Unit A, 17th Floor, Kwai Chung Town Industrial 2047
Wyler Centre Phase I, Lot number 130

192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung,

New Territories

Hong Kong

BEMAZKBNELE 208 T [ Hh B 13055 I —TNAF
1922 2005%

Bfm 02 5

AR

Unit B, 17th Floor, Kwai Chung Town Industrial 2047
Wyler Centre Phase II, Lot number 130

192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung,

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB A ZLBANELE 2L/ T & B 13057 I —TNAF
192 2005k

BfaPOE_H

T 1EBEE

— R
5
% M
I\ B
A
A
N
Gl
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FIvE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A B A

RESULTS e
Year ended 30th June
HEAAZTRLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE ZETLF —ZEER “TTRF —TEQF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T BT T BT T
Turnover S 134,174 136,240 93,405 175,951 227,605
(Loss)/profit BRETS B AT
before income tax (B18) /87 (26,070) 6,034 31,989 11,854 (23,644)
Income tax PTIS Rt
(expense)/credit (BF) /5 (1,048) 5,492 (4,684) (2,016) 4,126
(Loss)/profit attributable AN Al s
to the equity holders HHAEG
of the Company (E518) /&7 (27,118) 11,526 27,305 9,838 (19,518)
Proposed dividends BRAERE - — 14,621 — —
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES & E M AE
As at 30th June
RiA=+H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE ZETLF ZETRF —TTRE —TEEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BET T BET T BET T BT
Total assets REE 353,435 366,132 375,450 321,500 347,048
Total liabilities BeE (48,131) (52,269) (58,751) (32,559) (69,165)
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